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Financial Section Independent Auditors’ Report

2001 W Street, MW
Washington, DC 20038

Independent Auditors’ Report

Fo the Mayor and Council of the Govermmment ol the District of Columbia
Inspector General of the Government of the District of Columbta

We have audifed the accompanying finencial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activitics, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Government of the District of Columbia (Distriet), as of and for the year
ended September 30, 2002, which collectively comprisc the District’s basic financial statements as histed in
the table of contents. These basic financial statements are the responsibility of the District’s management.
Chur responstbility 1s to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issucd by the Comptroller General of the United States, Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audrt to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, ¢vidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant cstimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audil provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggrepate
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the agpregate remaining fund information of
the Bistrict, as of September 30, 2002, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows,
where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the general and federal and private
resources tunds for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

As deseribed in Note 1, the City has implemented a new financial reporting model and related disciosures,
as of October 1, 2061, as required by the following Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Pronouncements:

¢ GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and Management s Discussion and Analysis -
Jfor State and Local Governments

» GASB Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements — and Management's Discussion and Analysis —
Jor Public Colleges and Universities

» (GASB Statement No. 37 - Basic Financial Statements — and Management's Discussion and Analysis —
Jor State and Local Governments: Omnibus

e GASB Statement No. 38 — Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures

*  GASB Interpretation No. 6 - Recognition and Measurement of Certain Liabilities and Expenditures in
Governmental Fund Financial Statements
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The Management's Discussion and Analysis on pages 17 to 32 and the schedule of employer contributions
on page 86 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information
required by accounting principles generally accepted 1n the United States of Amernica. We have applied
certain hmited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods
of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information. However, we did not audit the
information and express no opinion on it.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have zlso issued a report dated January 24, 2003,
on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with cortain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in
conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprisc the District’s basic (inancial statements. The introduciory section, the other supplementary
information presented in the financial section as listed in the table of contents, and the statistical section are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
The statements and schedules described as other supplementary information have been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly
stated in all maienal respects in relation fo the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The
introductory and statistical sections have not becn subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

KPM LEP

January 24, 2003
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis Financial Section

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
September 30, 2002

{Amounts expressed in thousands)

The following is a discussion and analysis of the District of Columbia’s {the District’s} financial pertormance that provides
an overview of the activitics for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002, This discussion and analysis should be read in
conjunction with the District’s financial statements and the notes to the basic financial statements, which begin on pages 33
and 47 respectively.

In Fune 1999, members of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) unanimoeusly approved issuance of the
most comprehensive governmental reporting standard ever developed-—GASB  Statement No. 34, Basic Financial
Statements—and Management’s Discussion and Analysis——for State and Local Governments. GASB 34, as amended by
Statements No. 35, 37 and 38, was implemented during the current fiscal year, and impacts on the way the District’s financial
results and related disclosures will lock and read in this year’s CAFR and for all subsequent CAFRs. The primary changes
affect infrastructure reporting and depreciation of fixed assets, full accrual reporting at the government-wide level and this
Management's Discussion and Analysis.

GASE 34 requires that governments include new information and/or change the way that they report certain informatien: (1)
management’s discussions & analysis (ncw); (2) government-wide [inancial statements (new); (3) fund financial statcments,
and; {4) netes to financial statements. The District was already reporting many items in compliance with GASE 34 before it
was required. These changes have been designed to make the financial statements of governments more consistent in the
treatment and application of transactions and balances, in addition to being more easily read and undcrstood by the general
public.

The format and content of the CAFR in this transition year are different from previous periods. For this reason, there will be
few comparisons with the previous year. However, future reports are required to include extensive comparisons. Prior years’
financial reports focused on summarized fund data. The new focus is on both the District as a whole (government-wide), and
the major individual funds. The three components of the District’s basic financial statements are: !) governmeni-wide
financial starements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes 1o the basic financial statements. The report also contains
other supplementary informatien that is cutside the basic financial statements.

Financial Highlights

e GASB Statement No. 34, as amended by Statements No. 35, 37 and 38 was implemented for this year's financial
reports.  The statements provide the District’s financial information on a government-wide basis for the first time.
These changes are aimed at enhancing analysis of short- and long-term operations, and to strengthen accountability
for the use of government resources over multiple reperting periods.

e Govermmment-wide total net assets, as shown in Table 2, Mer Assets, page 21, were $1,139,845. (Governmental
activities contributed $864,999 while business-type activities contributed $274,846. This is an increase in total net
assets from the beginning of fiscal year 2002 of $22,365, an increase in governmental net assets of 340,696, and a
decrease in business-type activities of ($18,331), as shown in Table 3, Change in Net Assets on page 22.

+ Restricted net assets totaled $1,105,367, and were composed of governmental activities’ restricted net assets of
$834,006 and business-type activitics” restricted net assets of 3271,361, Unrestricted net assets amounted to
($623,860) and were composed of negative governmental unrestricted assets of ($625,850) and positive business-
type unrestricted assets of $1,990 (Table 2, Net Assets, page 21). Please refer to the discussion on pages 22 to 23 to
more fully understand the issue of negative governmental unrestricted assets.

» The District’s governmenial fund financial statements report primary sources and amounts of revenue as follows:
gencral taxes and other fees $3,666,604, federal and private resources of $1,978,440, general capital improvements
of $214,767 and nonmajor governmental funds of $60,180 for a combined governmental funds total of $5,919,991.
The general fund revenues were made up of the following items: property taxes of $804,394, sales and use taxes of
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$750,060, income and franchise taxes of $1,160,423, gross receipts taxes of $231,786 and other taxes of $283,140.
Other sources of general revenues amounted to $436,795. (From Exbibit 2b - Statement of Revenues, Fxpenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances -Governmental Funds, page 37).

+ Total governmental funds cxpenditures for the year were 36,449,625 and the major expenditures were for Human
Support - $2,249.3032; Public Education - $1,143281; and Public Safety & Justice - $899,116; with other
expenditures making up the remaining $2,157,925. These expenditures were paid for from resources made available
from general, federal and private resources, general capital improvements and nonmajor governmental funds. {From
Exhibit 2b - Stafement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balances —Governmental Funds, page 37).

+  Capital assets from governmental activities amounted to $3,900,817, while business-type activities provided capital
assets of $1.495 for total capital assets of $3,902,312. (From Table 2, Net Assets, page 21). The District recorded
depreciation expense in prior years and will continue to do so geing forward. The depreciation expense for
governmental aclivities for the fiscal year was $155,288. (Please see Note 1-T, Reconcifiation of Government-Wide
and Fund Financial Statements, page 58).

e At September 30, 2002 the District’s combined governmental {unds reported a total asset balance of $2,477,449,
total liabilitics of $1,610,979 and total fund balances of $866,470. These fund balances are made up of reserved and
unreserved amounts for general and special revenue funds, and capital project cxpendrtures. (From Exhibit 2-a,
Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds, page 36).

The Proprietary Funds

The District currently has two Proprietary Funds: the D.C. Lottery & Charitable Games Board (Lottery) and the
Unemployment Compensation Fund (Unemployment). Proprietary funds are District units that charge customers for the
services provided, whether to outside customers or to other units of the District. Proprietary funds are reported in the same
way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities.

Total net asscts, as of September 30, 2002, for Lottery and Unemployment were $3,485 and $271,361, respectively, for
proprictary total net assets of $274,846. The change in net assets in fiscal year 2002 was an increase of $111 for Lottery and
decrcase of ($18,442) for Unemployment, for a total decrease in proprietary fund net assets of ($18,331). Net cash provided
by (used in) operating activities for Lottery and Unemployment was $61,652 and ($53,335}, respectively. The total net cash
provided by their combined operating activities was $8,317. Please refer to Exhibit 3-a, Stafement of Net Assets —
Proprietary Funds, Exhibit 3-b, Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets — Proprietary Funds, and
Exhibit 3-¢, Statement of Cash Flows — Proprietary Funds, pages 40, 41 and 42 respectively for more detailed information.

The Component Units

The District currently has five Component Units: the D.C. Water & Sewer Authority, the Washington Convention Center
Autherity, the Sports & Entertainment Commission, the Housing Finance Agency and the University of the District of
Columbia. Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the District are financially
accountable. Accountability exists because the Mayor, with the consent of the Council, or other District officials, appoints
the governing bodies of all of the compencnt units. In addition, the District has an obligation to provide financial support to
the Convention Center, the Sperts and Entertainment Conuission, and the University of the District of Columbia, and certain-
tax revenues are dedicated to each of thesc organizations. All of the component units use proprietary fund accounting. The
financial data of the component units are reported separately from the financial data of the primary government.

The five component units had combined total asscts of $3,912,843, combined total liabilities of 32,675,674 and combined
total net assets of $1,237.169. The component units had combined total operating revenues of $362,064 and combined total
operating expenses of $378,971 for fiscal year 2002, resulting in a combimed operating loss of {$16,907). Please see Exhibit
5a, Discretely Presented Component Units - Combining Statement of Net Assets, page 45, and Exhibit 5b, Discrerely
Presented Component Units - Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets, page 46, for more
detailed financial informatior on the component units. Each of the component units prepares its own independently audited
financial statements, which are also accompanied by a MD&A.
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Short-Term Debt

The District issues short-term debt in order to finance seasonal cash flow nceds, when necessary, as the pattern of cash
received from taxes, grants and other revenues does not mateh exactly with the outflow of funds for gevermmental operations
and other required payments. The District did not 1ssue any short-term debt during fiscal year 2002, In the years that the
District does 1ssue short-term debt, 1t must be paid oft v ifs entirety by September 30 of that fiscal year.

Long-Term Debt and Bond Ratings

As of September 30, 2002, the District had $2,670,573 in serial and long-term general obligation bonds, $6,900 m tax
increment financing (TIF) notes, $119,645 i1 TIF bonds, $514,280 in tobacco bonds and $3,582 in qualified zone academy
bonds outstanding. As of the end of fiscal year 2001, these figures were as follows: $2,582,018 in serial and long-term
general obligation bonds, $6,900 in TIF notes and $521,105 in tobacco bonds. Thercfore, as of the end of fiscal year 2002, as
compared to the end of fiscal year 2001, there was an increase in ouistanding general obligation bonds by $88,555 afier debt
pavments of $195,315, an increase in TIF obligations by $119,645, and a decreasc in tobacco bonds by 36,825, (Please see
Note 7. Long-Teum Liabilities, page 71 for a more detailed discussion).

On December 3, 2001, the District issued $214,1355 in general obligation bonds, scheduled to mature on June 1, 2026 and
$69,715 in general obligation bonds scheduled f¢ mature on June 1, 2029, Both of these bond series were issued as variable
rate demand obligations, 4.09% and 4.08%, respectively. Both of these bond series will bear interest from their date of issue
at the variable rate unless converted to a fixed interest rate at a later date. Moody’s Investors Service, Standard and Poor’s
Ratings Services and Fitch Ratings have rated the District’s insured bonds Aaa, AAA and AAA, respectively. The District’s
uninsured gencral obligation bond ratings are Baal, BBB+ and BEB+, respectively.

Tax Increment Financing

The District participated in the issuance of two new Tax Increment Fimancing bonds in fiscal year 2002, The Mandarin
Oriental Hotel and Gallery Place in the amounts of $45,995 and $73,650, respectively. The Mandarin Oriental Hotel TIF
bonds were dated April 1, 2002 and are due to be fully paid by July 1, 2022. The interest rate on the Mandarin Onental Hotel
TIF bonds is 5.250%. The Gallery Place Project TIF bonds were dated April 1, 2002, and various amounts are due cach July
1, from 2005-22 and also on July 1, 2027 and 2031. The interest rates on the Gallery Place TIF bonds range from 4.000% to
5.500%. Both of the TIF bonds are mnsured, and carry AAA ratings.

The District’s TIF Program, which is administered jointly by the Office of the Chief Financial Officer and the Office of the
Deputy Mayor for Planning and Economic [Yeveclopment is among the District’s economic initiatives designed fo help
stimulate the expansion of commercial development, affordable housing, employment and other economic opportunities in
various areas of the District. All, or a portien, of the incremental Real Property Taxes and incremental Sales Taxes within a
defined TEF area may be applied to the repayment of TIF bonds used to finance projects within each respective TIF area.

Using This Annual Report

This annnal report includes a sertes of financial statements. The Statement of Ner Assets, Exhibit 1-a, and the Statement of
Activities, Exhibit 1-b, on pages 34 to 35, present information about the financial activities of the District as a whole. These
two statements provide an overall view of the District’s finances. The govermmental fund financial statements, Exhibit 2-a,
Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds. Exbhibit 2-b, Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances,
Exhibit 2-¢c, Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances of Government Funds,
and Exhibit 2-d, Budgetary Comparison Statement on pages 36, 37, 38 and 39, respectively, show how thesc services were
financed through the current year and the balances remaining for future spending. These fund financial statements focus on
the most significant District funds and present operations in more detail. The other statements provide details for enterprise
activities and other activities for which the District acts exclusively as a tiustec or agent for the benefit of the non-
governmental citizenry.

Regular readers of the District’s CAFR were accustomed to certain reports and statements.  For this reason, the following
Table 1, Comparison aof Prior Year's CAFRs With the New GA4SB 34 Reporting Model, 1s presented for your review and
guidance. [t shows the changes to reports and statements and identifics new ilems that are a result of the GASB 34
implemeniation.
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Table I — Comparison of Prior Year’s CAFRs With the New GASB 34 Reporting Model

Prior Years — Before GASE 34

[ndependent Auditors’ Report

Ciencral Purpose Financial Statements:

Fund Financial Statements
Governmental Funds:
Balance Sheet

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balance — Governmental

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
And Changes in Changes in Fund Balance
— Budget and Actual — Governmental

General Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
And Changes in Retained Eamings — Proprictary Funds

Fiduciary Funds:
Combined Statement of Net Assets
Combined Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Notes to Financial Statcments

Current Year — With GASB 34

Independent Auditors” Report
Management’s Discussion & Analysis (New)
Basic Financial Statements {New):
Government-wide Financial Statements (New)
Statement of Net Assets (New)
Statement of Activities {(New)
Fund Financial Statements (New Emphasis)
Governmental Funds:
Balance Sheet (Revised)
Recon. To Statement of Net Asscts (New)
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Dalances (Revised)
Recon. To the Statement of Activities (New)

Budgetary Comparison Statcment
(New Emphasis)

General Fund (Revised)
Major Special Revenue and Capital Projects Funds (New)
Proprictary Funds:
Statement of Net Assets (Revised)
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Net Assets (Revised)
Statement of Cash Flows {Revised)

Fiduciary Funds:
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets  {Revised)
Statement ot Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Revised)

Reporting on the District as a Whole (Government-Wide Financial Statements})

The District, as a whole, now reports all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting. This method is similar to
the accounting method used by most private-sector companies. In this way, all of the current year’s financial activities are
taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. The governmental activitics and business-type activities are
presented in two separate columns and combined te show totals for the primary government. The Statement of Net Assets
and the Statement of Activities are two statements that present information and activities that help the reader determine the
overall financial condition of the District. Readers can decide for themselves if the District’s financial status has improved or
deteriorated as a result of the year’s activities.

For the first time the District’s current financial resources (short-term spendable resources) are reported along with capital
assets and long-term obligations. This data is presented in the Statement of Net Assets. This report distinguishes between
governmental activities, business-type activities and component units” activities. Total assets less total liabilities equal total
net asscts. The total net assets are the sum of these three components: 1) invested in capital assets, net of relufed debi, 2)
resiricted assets and 3) unrestricted assets. Over time and accounting periods, changes in the District’s net assets are an
indicator of its financial health. However, changes in population, property tax base, mfrastructure deterioration and other
non-financial facters niust be incorporated in assessing the overall financial well being of the District.

The Statement of Activities summarizes both the gross and net cost of the governmental and business-type activities.
Governmental activities show the Dhistrict’s basic functional services while business-type activities reflect enterprise
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operations where a fee for services is expected to cover all or most of the costs of operations, including depreciation.
Program/function expenses are reduced by program specific carned revenues, and by grants, that reduce net expenses for
govermmental and business-type activities. The District’s gencral revenues {property, sales, tncome and franchise taxes)
offset remaining programy/function costs, resulting in an increase or decrease in net assets.

Financial Analysis of the Government as 2 Whole

Comparative information for assets, liabilities, net assets, and revenues are not available, since this is the first year of GASB
34 implementation. In future CAFRs, comparative reporting will be complete. Table 2, Met Assets shows net assets from
governmental activities and business-type activities, in addition to the totals amounis for the two. The District has
$6,066,755 in total assets from governmental activities and $386,233 from its business-type activities, for a total of
$6,452,988. The total liabilities associated with these amounts are $5,201,756, $111,387 and $5,313,143 respectively for
governmental activities, business-type activitics and the tetal of the two. By deducting the total liabilitics from the total
assets, the District is showing net assets of 3864,999 for governmental activities, $274.846 {or business type activitics for
total net asscts of $1,130.845.

Table 2 - Net Assets as of September 30, 2002

Governmental Business-{ype
activities activities Total
Current and other assets $ 2,165938 § 384,738 % 2,550,676
Capital assets 3,900,817 1,495 3902312
Total assets 6,066,755 386.233 6,452,988
Long-term liabilities outstanding 3,635,149 70,158 3,705,307
Other liabilities 1,566,607 41,229 1,607,836
Total Liabilities 5,201,756 111,387 5,313,143
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net
of related debt 656,901 1,495 658,396
Restricted 834,006 271,361 1,105,367
Unrestricted {625,908) 1,990 {623,918)
Total net assets $ 864,999 § 274,846 § 1,139,845

The District’s combined total net assets increased by $22,365 in fiscal yvear 2002, which was composed of an mcrease for
governmental activities of $40,696 and a decrease for business-type activities of ($18,331). The total net assets of the
governmental activities increased 4.94% from the $824,303 amount at the beginning of the year, and business-type activities
experienced a decrease in total net assets of {6.25%) from the $293,177 amount at the beginning of the fiscal year. The
combined net total assets for both governmental activitics and business-type activities increased 2.00% from the §1,117,480
ameunt that the District started with at the beginning of the 2002 fiscal year on October 1, 2001. Please refer to Table 3,
Change in Net Assets, on page 22,

The District had $1,105,367 in total restricted net assets as of September 30, 2002, which 1s compesed of $834,006 from
govermmental activities and $271,361 from its business-type activities. At the same time, the District is showing a negative
{$623,860} in unrestricted net assets, which is the result of negative unrestricted net assets from its governmental activities of
{$625,850) and a positive $1,990 from business-type activities.

The change in the total net assets for governmental activities includes a significant loss as a direct result of the closure of
District’s Lorton Correctional Complex in Lerton, Virginia during fiscal year 2002, The property was transferred, without
consideration, to the Fairfax County Water Authority of Fairfax, Virginia. The District recognized a loss of {($171,094) on
the disposal of the Lorton Complex. The decrease in total net assets for business-type activities was due to the transfer to the
District’s governmental activities of {$63,000) by the D.C. Lettery. Each year, the D.C. Lottery transfers substantiaily all of
its income to the District. Because the $63,000 fransfer from the business-type activities (I>.C. Lottery) is shown as a
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reduction, and the transfer to governmental activities is shown as an increase, there is no cffect on the District’s total net
asscts. The two amounts, on both sides of the same transaction, cancel each other ont, as shown v Table 3, Change in Net
Assets,

Table 3 - Change in Net Assets as of September 30, 2002

Governmental Business-type
activities activities Total
Revenues: -
Program revenues:
Charges for services b 286,044 % 211,151 % 497,195
Operating grant and contribulions 1,890,544 49,308 1,939 852
Capital grants and contributions 161,450 - 161,450
General revenues:
Property taxes 809,009 - 809,069
Other taxcs 2425415 104,945 2,530,360
Other 353,226 18,978 372,204
Total revenues 5,925,748 384,382 6,310,130
Expenses:
Governmental dircction and support 451,863 - 451,863
Econoniic developrnent and regulation 323,804 - 323,804
Public safety and justice 920,599 - §20,599
Public cducation system 1,153,719 - 1,153,719
Human support services 2,267,597 - 2,267,597
Public works 279,506 - 279,506
Public transportation 184,883 - 184,883
Interest on long-term debt 175,241 - 175,241
Fiscal charges 19,746 - 19,746
Lottery and games - 148,670 148,670
Unemployment compensation - 191,043 191,043
Total expcenses 5,776,958 339,713 6,116,671
Increase in net assets before transfers
and special items 148,790 44,669 193,459
Transfers from lottery hoard 63,000 (63,000) -
Special item — loss on disposal (171,094) - (171,094)
Increase {decrease) in net assets 40,696 (18,331) 22,365
Net assets - Oct 1, 2001 824,303 293177 1,117,480
Net assets - Sept 30, 2002 $ 864999 § 274,846 $ 1,139,845

Fund balances in the fund financial statements will generally differ from net assets in the government-wide financial
statermnents due to the difference in the measurement focus and basis of accounting used in the respective financial statements.
Fund financial statements focus primarily on the sources, uses, and balances of current financial resources and use the
modified accrual basis of accounting. The Government-wide financial statements focus on all the economic resources of the
District and usc the full accrual basis of accounting, which 1s similar to the accounting method used by most private sector
companies. These differences may result in the Government-wide statements reflecting pegative unrestricted net assets.
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The negative unrestricted net assets of {$625,850) for governmental activities, shown in Table 2, Ner Assets, page 21, resuits
mainly from the recording of non-current liabilities such as claims and judgments, compensated absences, general obligation
debt, inferest on long-tcrm debt, and other unfunded long-term liabilities. These amounts are not included in the
governmental funds financial statements. This negative net asset does not 1mply (hat the District lacks resources to pay its
bills next year. Rather, it is the result of recording long-term obligations that will be liguidated with resources to be provided
in the future, Put simply, future liabilities are reported in the currenl-year Govermment-wide staternents without the matching
resources that belong in the budgets of future perieds.

Chart 1 shows contributions as they were applied for the fiscal year. This chart is a visual presentation of the numbers that
were just discussed in Table 3, Change in Nef Assels.

Chart 1 - Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities

Revenues by Source -- Governmental Activities

B Oporating grant and
— contributions
! 34%

W Oeher taxes B Charges for services j

43% \ 3% ]

-. O Capital grants and
! Te— contributions

/ 3%

O Property taxes
1594

District of Columbic * 4 * 23



Financial Section Management's Discussion and Analysis

Chart 2 displays both expenses and program revenues of sclected govermmental activities for the fiscal year: The
governmental activities are govermmental direction and support, economic development and regulation, public safety and
Justice, public education system, human support services and public works.

Chart 2 - Expenses and Program Revenues — Governmental Activities

Expenses and Program Revenues -Governmental Activities

Sin 000's
[Df.wpcmcq =] [_‘rog_r;tm Revenues ‘

2,500,000
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1 0043, G00G
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Reporting the District’s Most Significant Funds

The fund financial statements presentation will be more familiar to regular readers of the traditional CAFR. Starting this
year, the focus will be on major funds and not on fund types. Major funds, as defined by established District gnidelines, are
presented individually, with nonmajor governmental funds combined in a single colummn. Sources and uses of resources
assigned through the financial planning and budgeting process measure the District’s ability to fund operations in the short-
term.

District laws, bond covenants, and other legal stipulations cause funds to be established for specific purposes and te report on
the activities related to supplies and services that they provide te the general public. A fund is a fiscal and accounting entity
with a self-balancing set of accounts that the District uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending for a
particular purpose. The District’s funds are presented in three categories or groups — governmental, proprietary and
fiduciary.

Governmental Funds
The governmental fund financial statements relate to the governmental activities column in the government-wide statements.

The focus is on a shorter-term basis and measures how money flows into and out of these funds and determines the balances
lcft at year-end for future spending. Most basic services are found in this fund category and are reported as General, Federal
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and Private Resources, General Capital Enprovements, and Nonmajor Governmental Funds. These funds are reported using
the medified accrual accounting basis, which measures cash and other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash.

The District reported the fellowing total assets in its govermmental funds balance sheet: $1,616,535 in its general fund,
$519,473 in federal & private resources, $166,626 in general capital improvements, and $174,815 1n nonmajor governmental
funds, for total governmental fund assets ol $2,477.449 as of September 30, 2002. The District reported the following
liabilities in its governmental funds balance sheet: $751,207 n its general fund, $283,674 in federal & private resouices,
$556,156 in general capital improvements, and $19.%42 in nonmajor governmental funds, for total governmental fund
liabilities of $1,610,979. Please see Exhibit 2-a, Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds, page 30, for more detailed
information.

The District reported the following revenue amounts in its govermmental funds: $3,666,604 m #s general fund, $1,978 440 in
federal & private resources, $214,767 in general capital improvements, and $60,180 in nonmajor governmental funds, for a
total of $5,919,991 for the year ended September 30, 2002, The District reported the following expenditure amounts in its
governmental funds: $3,668,559 in its general fund, $1,783,501 m federal & private resources, $814,129 in general capital
improvements, and $183,436 in nonmajor governmental funds, for a total of $6.449,625 in governmental fund expenditures
for the year ended September 30, 2002, This resulted in a combined deficiency of total revenues over total expenditures of
($529.634). Please see Exhibit 2-b, Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental
Funds, page 37, for more detailed information,

Federal and private resources had an excess of revenues over expenditures of $194,939. This was primarily the result of the
federal government appropriating $155,900 for the District for various purposes related to emergency preparedness as a result
of the September 11 attacks and the continuing threat of terrorist attacks in the District.  While this appropriation was
recorded as revenues in fiscal year 2002, most of the related expenditures will be incurred in fiscal ycar 2003, The majority
of the rcvenues from federal and private resources are from federal contributions of $490,616 and operating grants of
$1,399,928. The largest expenditure, 51,168,574, paid for out of federal and private resources was for human support
services.

General capital improvements expendifures of $814,129 exceeded the general capital improvements revenues of $214,767 by
($599,362), which created the deficiency shown. Basically, what this means is that the District is investing more in capital
improvements than associated revenues were available. The District is rapidly investing in infrastructure and other
improvements to encourage residents to stay in the District and for new residents to move into the District. Please see
Exhibit 2-b, Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes tn Fund Balances, page 37, [or more detailed information.

The net change in the general cepital improvements fund for fiscal year 2002 was a reduction of ($346,309) once other
financing sources of $253,053 was added to the ($3599,362) deficit mentioned above. It is the District’s financial policy to
issue gencral obligation bonds to support the expenditures associated with its Capital Improvements Program. In order to
minimize the cost of carrying debt, the District has instituted the practice of issuing bonds based on actual expenditures as
opposed to the amount budgeted on an annual basis. Therefore, the District authorizes agencies to spend their annual
appropriated budget in advance of financing. The general fund advances the amount of the funding, which is then repaid
with the proceeds of the bonds when the debt is issued. This allows the District to control when it will enter the market to
issue bonds based upon cash flow needs, favorable miarket rates and the number of municipal deals and the types of credits
that are in the market, thus minimizing its borrowing cost and maximzing the number of potential investors of the District’s
bonds.

Historically, the District issues its debt in the last quarter of the fiscal year. In fiscal year 2002, the District initiated its
capital borrowing in August for an amount of $367 muillion and it also included a refunding of outstanding bonds. This
issuance was to cover the capital expenditures that were incurred in fiscal year 2002. However, the band sale was not
completed until October of fiscal year 2003, and consequently, the general fund was not reimbursed until after the close of
fiscal year 2002, resulting in the general capital improvements fund deficit e fiscal year 2002.

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds use acerual accounting for reporting purposes. Interprise funds provide supplies and services to the
general public. The District shows Loitery and Games (Lottery) and Unemployment Compensation (Unemployment) in this
classification. The Proprietary Funds are discussed in more detail en page 18. The following two charts, Chart 3, Expense
and Program Revenues — Business-Type Activities and Chart 4, Revenues by Source — Business-Type Activities, give a visual
presentation of the comparisons between Lottery and Unemployment and the clements displayed in these two charts.
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The relative comparisons in Charts 3 and 4 are based upon information from Exhibit 3-a, Statement of Nef Assets —
Proprictary Funds, page 40, and Exhibit 3-b, Statement of Revenues, Lxpenses and Changes in Fuind Net Assels —
Proprictary Funds, page 41. Please reter to these exhibits and the discussion on page 18 of the MD&A for mote detailed
financial information on proprictary funds.

Chart 3 — Expenses and Program Revenues — Business-type Activities
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Fiduciary Funds

The District 1s the trustee or fiduciary for its employees’ pension plans. The Trust and Agency fFunds are used to account for
asscts held by the Disirict as trusiee for individuals, privale organizations, or other governments.  All fiduciary activities are
reported in the Exhibit 4-a, Statement of Fiduciary Net Assers and Exhibit 4-b, Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
on pages 43 and 44, respectively. These activities arc excluded from the District’s other financial statements because these
resources are restricted and are thercfore not available for financing other operations.  Fiduciary funds use accrual
decounting.

The District’s fiduciary funds show total assets of $1,959,996 for its pension trust funds, and agency funds of $114,253 as of
Seplember 30, 2002, The fiduciary funds show total liabilities of $143,053 and $114,253 respectively for pension trust funds
and agency funds. Agency funds show a zcro net asset balance because these are funds that are being held by the District for
the benefit of outside partics and consequently are not available to support District operations. The net assets restricted for
pension benefits are $1,816,943,

General Fund Budget

The originally formulated general fund budget estimated total revenues and other sources of $3,785,835 and total
expenditures and other uses of $3,875,477, resulted in a projected budgetary deficit of ($89,642). This deficit was the result
of the District advancing $107,497 in fiscal year 2003 funds to the D.C. Public School System (IXCPS). These monies were
advanced to DCPS in order to purchase goods and services during the summer of 2002, prior to the start of fiscal year 2003
and the new school year. The District obtained approval for the advance from the U.S. Congress. Wilhout the DCPS
advance, the general fund fiscal year 2002 budget would have had a surplus of $17,855. Plcase refer to Table 4, Fiscal Year
2002 — Genera! Fund Budgetary Highlights on page 28 for more dctails.

The District’s budget is always subject to revision and/or veto by the U.S. Cengress and the President.  As the budget moves
through the federal budgetary process, the budget is subject to additions, delctions and changes in both the amounts and the
purpases included in the budget. In addition, as the District’s CFO prepares new revenue estimates, the District must revise
the budget submission to conform te the new estimates, and aiso to make sure that the budget 13 balavced, as required by LS.
and District Law.

Fiscal year 2002 was no different, and the total gencral fund budgeted revenues and cther sources were revised to
$3,688,421, a reduction of ($97,414). The major rcason for this was that other taxes were decreased by ($87,197). This
decrease was the result of sales and use taxes that were reduced by ($74,603) and income and franchise taxes that were
decreased by ($51,276), which were partially offset by increases in other taxes of $38,682. Plcase refer to the discussion on
CGeneral Fund Taxes and Revenues following Table 4. Total general fund budgeted expenditures were also revised to
$3.693,797, a reduction of {$181,680), which was caused primarily by the shifting of undesignated budget reserves to
specific expenditure uses. These revisions resulted in a budgetary deficit of ($5,376), which was technically a deficit, but
essentially a balanced budget. This was acceptable because the U.S. Congress had approved and allowed the District to
advance fiscal year 2003 funds to the D.C. Public schools in fiscal year 2002.

The actual results for fiscal year 2002 for the general fund are total revenues of $3,676,978, and was {$11,443} less than what
was projected. Total actual expenditures and other uses was $3,629,431, and was {($64,360) less than what the District had
budgeted for. In this case, less is actually more on a budgetary basis, and the overall result was that the District actually
ended up with a general fund budgetary excess, or surplus, of $47,547, which tumed out to be $52,923 more than what was
projected in the revised general fund budget.

It must be mentioned that the financial statements in this CAFR look at the District in various ways so that the reader can get
a much better view of how each major part of the District functions. In addition, the CAFR gives new presentations of the
entire District as a single organization, which is really what most citizens, think of when they hear the term “Distnict of
Columbia Government.” Most readers do not care whether we talk about general government and funds, proprietary
activities and funds, er fiduciary activities and funds. To the public, we are the Disirict Government. These new statements
and the MD&A is an important step in presenting the District as a singie entity, as opposed to a collection of individual
entities, or organizations.
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Table 4 - Fiscal Year 2002 General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Budget Variance
Original Revisions Revised Actual Over{under)
Revenues and Other Sources:
Property taxes $ 740,031 35,361 781,352 803,389 21,997
Other taxes 2,497,524 (87,197} 2410327 2,344,193 (695,134)
Charges for services 225334 3,677 229011 272,759 43,748
Grants and contribution 209,545 (49,255) 160,250 156,236 {4,054)
All other sources 107,401 - 107,401 100,401 {7,000)
Total revenues and other sources 3,785,835 (97,414) 3,688.421 3,676,978 {11,443)
Expenditures and Other Uses:
Governmental direction and support 278,407 (16,284) 262,123 265,939 3.816
Economic development and regulation 141,526 (2,761) 138,765 116,791 (21,974)
Public safety and juslice 632,241 13,685 645,926 636,160 {9,766)
Public education system 905,461 4,659 910,120 901,009 (9,111)
FY03 public school cxpenditure 107,497 (75,558) 31,939 31,939 -
Human support services 732,130 31,015 703,145 755,081 (8,004)
Public works 298,505 11,028 309,533 303,301 4,172y
Receiverships 251,200 47,795 298,995 331,100 32,105
Other 328,510 {195,25%) 333,251 286,051 (47,200}
Total expenditures and other uses 3875477 {181,680) 3,603,797 3,629,431 {(64,366)
Excess — budgetary basis k) (89,642) 84,266 {5,376) 47 547 52,923

Total taxes collected in FY 2002 were (344,137} less than expected in the District’s revised FY 2002 budget. This ditference
is accounted for primarily by pesitive variances (laxes we received that were more than what we had budgeted for) of
$105,240, while we experienced negative variances (taxes we received that were less than what we had budgeted for) of
($149,377). Please see Exlubit 2-d, page 39, Budget Comparison Statement.

The positive variances were made up primarily by the following increases in tax category amounts: Property Taxes of
$21,997; Sales and Use taxes of $4.933: and other taxes, which increased by $78,310 more than the District budgeted for.

Real property revenue increased due to an increase in property assessments on existing properties and also on new
construction. The inheritance and estate taxes increased significantly due primarily to a large tax payment from one cstate,
and on increased collections from estates remitting more than $1,000. Deed recordation fees were increased due to lower
mertgage interest rates, which prompted an increase in the refinancing of mortgage loans.

The negative variances are primarily from several tax category amoumts. Income and franchise taxes were {$149,377) less
than the District’s revised budget had amount. Individual and corporate income tax collections were down as a result of a
weaker economy resulting from the after-cffects of September 11" This has resulted in overall job employment and local
economic weaknesses throughout the last fiscal year, and a significant reduction in the amount of earnings received by
individuals from their stock market transactions and employment bonuses.

The majority of the Districts funds come from the collection of taxes, along with other local sources, such as licenses and
permits, fines and forfeitures and charges for services. The two other main sources of revenues are federal and private
resources, which include both contributions and operating grants. In fiscal year 2002, the District originally budgeted for
$17.,000 in federal contributions, revised its budgeted amount to $240,430 and received that amount. The majonty of this
increased federal contribution was trom federal payments of $155,800 for various purposes related to emergency
preparedness. Because of the importance of the U.8. Government, and Washington, D.C. as potential terrorist targets, and as
a result of the events of September 11™ the District received these additional funds to increase public safety readiness of its
police, fire, emergency medical service and emergency management.
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Capital Assets

As of Scptember 30, 2002 the District had $3,902,312 invested in total capital asscts, $3,900,817 from govermmental
activitics and $1,495 from business-type activities. These capilal assets include, but are not limited to, land, buildings, police
and fire cquipment, park facilities, roads and bridges. The govemmental activities depreciation charges for the current fiscal
year totaled $155,288. The general capital improvements fund is used to account for the purchasc or construction of capital
assets financed by transfers, capital grants or debt. Please see Table 5, Net Capital Assets, on this page for more details.

The District inslalled, and began using, a Fixed Asset Module (FAS) to its financial management system for fiscal year 2002.
FAS is intended to allow for more accurate znd consistent information on the District’s capital assets, by requiring agencies
that purchasc such assets to update the system with type of asset (e.g.. land, buildings, equipment, vehicles, etc.) acquisition
date, zcquisition and/or construction cost, useful life, location, etc.

Tahle 5 — Net Capital Assets As of September 30, 2002

Business-
Governmental type
activities activifies Total
Land 3 219076 § - $ 219,076
Buildings 1,300,191 - 1,300,191
Infrastructure 1,172,384 - 1,172,384

Equipment 202,734 1,465 204,229
Construction i progress 1,006,432 - 1,006,432

Total net capital assets $ 3,900817 % 1495 §% 3,902,312

Qutstanding Bonds and Notes

At September 30, 2002 the District had a total of $3,314,980 in general obligation bonds, TIF Notes and Bonds, Qualified
Zone Academy Bonds (Q7AB), and Tobacco Bonds outstanding. Please refer to Table 6, Ousstanding Debt, belaw. This is
an increase of $205,957 over last year’s figure of $3,110,023. This is the result of the District issuing new general obligation,
TIF and QZAB bonds, offset by payments against matured debt and debt that was defeased, or refinanced, during the year.
The District had $7,820 of gencral obligation debt per capita (D.C. resident) as of September 30, 2002, an increase of $3,138
from the amount on Scptember 30, 2001 of $4,682 per resident. Pleasc refer to Exhibit S-12, Percent of General Obligation
Debt to Assessed Value and General Obligation Debt Per Capita on page 118.

Table 6 — Quistanding Bonds and Notes at September 30, 2002

Governmental

activities
General Obligation Bonds % 2,670,573
TIF Bonds and Notes 126,545
Qual:fied Zone Academy Bonds 3,582
Tobacco Bonds 514,280
Total 3 3,314,980
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Currently Known Facts, Decisions or Conditions
Proposed Fiscal Year 2003 Budget

‘The District submitted its original fiscal year 2003 budgct to the President on June 4, 2002, Please refer to Table 7, Proposed
Fiscal Year 2003 Budgct — Revenues and Expenditures by Function, below. Based upon a revised revenue estimate that was
done in September 2002, the Mayor, the CFQ and the Council made changes 1n the budget to reflect the revenue estimate
which was $222,700 less than the estimate used for the origmal budget submission to the U.S. Congress four month’s carlicr.
The revised fiscal year 2003 budget requests a total of $5,562,308 for District general fund operations. This is made up of
$3.638,411 from local funds, $1,712,498 from federal funds, and $211,399 from private and other funds. After including the
enterprise and other funds total of $873,313 to the private and other funds total above, the grand total for the entire District is
$6,435,621.

It is extremely important to note that this budget has not yet been approved and signed inte law, and as such, is still subject to
revision. In addition, throughout the current fiscal year, both the District, and the federal government, may seek, and oblain,
nodifications to the fiscal vear 2003 budget. As a result, the budget that we propose is not the same budget that is enacted,
and that appreved budget at the beginning of the fiscal year is not always the same budget that we will compiete the fiscal
year under. Two cxamples of this are the following situations where the District was given additional meney by the federal
government during fiscal year 2002: (1) an advance to the [.C. Public Schoels, and: (2) funds for emergency preparcdness.

The 11.8. House of Representatives {House) and the U.S. Scenate (Senate) must first approve the District’s budget before it is
sent to the President for his approval and signature. The District 1s required to submit a balanced budget that is based upon
current revenue estimates that must be periodically updated by the District’s Chief Financial Officer (CFO).  After the
District’s budget is submiitted, it is reviewed and voted upon by both the House and Senate’s Budget Committees, in addition
to their respective Appropriations Committees. This year, the District’s budget was not approved and signed into law before
the start of the 2003 fiscal year, and the District is therefore required to spend at last year’s approved levels until the budget is
finally approved and signed mto law.

Table 7 — Proposed Fiscal Year 2003 Budget - Revenues and Expenditures by Function

Private &

Government Function Local Federal Other Total
Governmental Direction and Support $ 207,971 36,554 18,348 § 262,873
Economic Development and Regulation 56,872 97,796 89,690 244,358
Public Safety and Justice 602,678 11,329 8,524 622,531
Public Education System 939,174 188,470 31,525 1,159,169
Human Support Services 1,052,151 1,373,680 52,987 2,478,818
Public Works 304,363 4,669 10,325 318,357
Financing and Other 475,202 - - 475,202

Total General Fund - Operating 3,638,411 1,712,498 211,399 5,562,308
Enterprise and Other Funds - - 873,313 873,313
Grand Total, District Government 3 3,638,411 1,712,498 1,084,712 § 6,435,621

Possible Change in U.S. Congressional Oversight Of the District

On Friday, lanuary 10, 2003, U.S. Representative Thomas M. Davis announced that he intends to abolish thc Housc
Government Reform subcommittce on the District of Columbia, and to assume oversight of the District as the mcoming
chairman of the full Government Reform Comrmittee, which also oversees U.S, civil servants, federal contractors,
governmental investigations, and the U.S. Postal Service. If this abolishment of the District subcommitter actually takes
place, it could result in increased autonomy for the District over its budget and spending decisions.
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Fiscal Year 2003 Debt Issuances

On October 15, 2002, the District issued General Obligation Bonds in the aggregate amount of $374,200, with two maturity
dates, June 1, 2019 and June 1, 2027. The proceeds of these bonds are being used to fund a portion of the District’s fiscal
year 2002 Capital Improvement program. On October 31, 2002, the District issucd General Obligation Refunding bonds in
the aggregate amount of $163,170, with twe maturity dates, June 1, 2014 and June 1, 2031. The proceeds of these bonds
were used to repay a portion of the District’s outstanding gencral obligation bonds at a savings to the Disirict. On October
30, 2002, the District issued General Obligation Tax Revenue Anticipation Notes in the aggregate amount of $150,000. The
proceeds of these notes are being used to fund the Istrict’s seasonal cash flow needs. These notes were issued as lixed-rate
notes, and mature on Seplember 30, 2003,

January 1, 2003 Tax Increases

On January 1, 2003, various District taxes increased as a result of actions taken by the D.C. Mayor, Chief Financial Officer
and D.C. Council in September 2002 to close a projected $322,700 budget deficit for fiscal year 2003, Cigarctte taxcs rose
from 65 cents per pack to $1. The recordation tax rose from 1.1% of the purchase value for properties in the District to 1.5%
of the purchased value. Wholesale liquor taxes are now 9% mstead of the previous 8%. Public utility taxes on items such as
gas and clectricity are now 11% instead of 10%. These tax increases are projected to raise aboul $78,000 in fiscal year 2003.

New U.S. Department of Homeland Security Headquarters

The decision to locate the permanent Homeland Security headquarters, in the Washington Metropolitan Area, has been made,
but it has not yet been determined which jurisdiction it will be located in. This is one example of the influence of national
and intcrnational events that will have a direct impact on the District economy, in addition to the economies of the
surrounding jurisdiclions. Regardless of where the permanent Homeland Security headquarters is located, it will affect retail
sales, cmployment, traffic patterns, and school populations, both public and private, among others, within the District. On
January 22, 2003, Homeland Security Secretary Tom Ridge announced that agency headquarters would be located in the
District for the [oreseeable future. District officials, and congressional staff members, have estimated that locating the
Homeland Security Headquarters in Washington, D.C. would provide about $171 million in econemic benefits to the District
over the next five years.

Thirtcen-Week Extension Of Unemployment Compensation Benefits

The Job Creation and Worker Assistance Act of 2002 (Act), referred to as the Temporary Extended Unemployment
Compensation (TEUC) provides up to 13 additional weeks of benefits for eligible, unemployment claimants who exhaust
their regular Unemployment Insurance benefits. The TEUC benetits are entirely federally funded and cmployers are not
charged for clamms paid out under the extension. The TEUC program that ended December 28, 2002 has been extended.
This extension means that unemployed workers that exbausted regular benefits and could not file TEUC claims on, or after,
December 28, 2002 may now file claims. The District’s unemployment rate for October 2002 was 6.0% and some District
residents will be eligible to file TEUC claims.

Bankruptey of Greater Southeast Commmumity Hospital

In late October 2002, the bonds of National Cenfury Financial Enterprises (National) subsidiaries were downgraded by debt
rating services because they were not sufficiently backed by required cash reserves. National is 2 major health-care industry
financier that buys the accounts receivables of various hospitals. National then bundles these reeetvables into groups, which
it then issues bonds to the general financial community. One of the hospitals that were dependent upon National was the
Greater Southeast Community Hospital (Greater Southeast), the prime contractor for the District’s indigent health carc
system.

On November 18, 2002, National filed for bankruptey, creating a great deal of public concern about the viability of Greater
Southeast to remain i operation, and to cffectively provide quality health care services to its patients. Two days later, the
Greater Southeast’s parent corporatienr, Doctors Community HealthCare Corporation and Greater Southeast also filed for
bankruptcy. As a result of the financial crises, Greater Southeast had to Iay off some of its administrative and health care
staff.
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The District, the LS. Center for Medicare and Medicaid services, and the U.S. Bankruptey Court {Court) have made recent
decisions that have temporarily allowed Greater Southeast to continue operations by releasing funds, or expediting payments,
to Greater Southeast to pay essential employees, contractors and vendors, at feast through late January 2003, The Court will
then have another hearing on Greater Southeast’s bankiuptey situation. The resulting decisions, and the subsequent outcome,
will have a tremendous impact on the near-term future and effectivenecss of the District’s indigent health care system and its
cost ever the next few years, and will also impact other private acute care hospitals located in the District.

It 15 not yet known how the financial situation of Greater Southeast will be resolved, but, because of the uncertainty, the
District 1s currentiy revalvating its overall strategy to provide medical and health care services to the indigent. [t is possible
that, il Greater Southeast were forced te close, the District might have to consider either reopening D.C. General Hospital
{D.C. General) or to contracting all medical and health carc for ifs covered indigent citizens fo the District’s remaining
private acute care hospitals. Due to the volume of paticnts that were treated at the former D.C. General in its emergency
room, acute care and cutpatient facilities, this would have a significant impact on the cost and availability of health care for
all patients in the District, and could cost the District considerably more than it has budgeted for indigent health care.

Contacting the District’s Office of the Chief Financial Officer

This CAIR is designed to provide the District’s citizens, taxpayers, customers, vendors, and investors and creditors with a
gencral everview of the District’s finances and to show the District’s accountability for the money it receives. For additional
mformation on the Iistrict’s component units, the D.C. Water & Sewer Authority, the Washington Convention Center
Authority, the Sports & Entertainment Commission, the Housing Finance Agency and the lniversity of the District of
Columbia, please refer to page 51 of the notes to the basic financial statements that has contact information for those
organizations. I wyou have any questions about this report, the District’s Fiscal year 2002 CAFR, suggestions for
improvement, or need additional financial informatien, please contact:

The Office of the Clhief Financial Officer
The John A. Wilson Building

1350 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W., Suite 209
Washingten, D.C. 20004

(202) 727-2476

www.dccfo.com
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The basic financial statements include two kinds of financial statements that present different views of the
District: Government-Wide Financial Statements and Fund Financial Statements.

These financial statements also include the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements that explain some of the
information in the financial statements and provide more detail.
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Exhibit 1-a

Distriet Of Columbia
Statement of Net Asscts
September 30, 2002

(S000s)
Primary Government
Goverpmental Buosiness-Type Componecnt
Activities Activities Tokal Units
ASSETS
{ash and cash equivalents {unrestricted) 3 55433 % 8,309 § 63,742 § 178,112
Investments (unecstricted} 531,141 %631 339772 28,0099
Accrued inlcrest receivable 722 - 722 -
Due (rom tederal government 427436 3,910 431,346 38312
Taxes reegivable, net 234,244 - 234,244 -
Accounts receivable, net 177,466 21,510 198,976 30257
Other receivables G461 - 63,4061 29.652
Due rom printary governiment - - - 28,107
e frorm companent units 11,895 - 11,595 -
Due from liduciary funds 620 - 620 -
Internal balances 27,323 (27,323) - “
Tnventorics 12,154 [:X) 12,837 T.758
Other current assels 23,612 5 23,617 647
Cash and cash equivalents {restricted) 568,431 298,855 307,286 50,690
Investments (restricled} - 70,158 70,158 926,377
MNotes and loans receivable, net - - - 342350
Deferred charges - - - 49,664
Capital assets, net 3900817 1,495 3,902.312 2.158.739
Other noncurrett assets - - - 15,053
Tota! assets 6,006,755 386,233 6,452 084 3,912 843
LIABILITIES
Accounis payable 661,685 23,471 685,156 114,181
Compensation payable 145,499 726 146,225 11,087
Due o primary government - - - 11,895
Due 1o component units 28,107 - 28,107 -
Deferred revenue 189,461 i3t 189,592 51,046
Accrued habiliics 195,041 7,792 205,833 79,396
Accrued interest payable 45,316 - 45,316 -
Other current liabilities 30,940 2,109 40,049 33,232
Noncurrent liahilities:
D within one year 267,538 - 267,558 126,233
[Due in more than unge year ' 3,635,149 FA58 3,705,307 2,248 604
Total liabilities 52001,736 111,387 5,313,143 2,675,074
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 56,901 1,495 633,396 724,395
Restricted - expendable 334,006 271,301 1,103,367 286,990
Restricted - non-cxpendable - - - a.432
Unrestrigted {625.908) 1,990 {623,918) 216,352
Total net assets $ 864,999 % 274846 § 1,139,845 § 1,237,169

The accompanying notes are an infegral part of this statement,
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Financial Section Buasic Financial Stafemenis

Exhibit 2-a
District O Columbia
Balance Shect
Gavernmental Funds
September 30, 2002
{5000s)
Federal General Nonmajor Total
& Privaic Capital Governmental Governmental
Gereral Resourees Improvements Funds Fuads
ASSETS
{ash and cash equivalents {unrestricled) 5 47.936 § 7293 8 - 5 204 5 33.433
Irvestments {unresiricled) 439,994 1.404 5381 81.360 531041
Accrued interest recgivable, net 693 - - 9 722
Bue trom federal government 4,248 365,450 ST.738 - 4274346
Taxes receivable. net 234.242 - - - 234242
Accounts receivable, net 116051 P17.29% 65,375 3203 342927
Due from component units 177 - - 11,708 11,593
Due from other funds 2592258 25,763 9,990 11.443 339,456
Inventories 9,891 2.263 - - 12,154
Other current assets 23612 - - - 23012
Cash ard cash equivalents (restricted) 447,43 - B4.142 66,838 398,431
Total assels 5 1ol6,53% % 319,473 % 166,626 % 174,815 % 2,477,449
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Lizbilities:
Accounts pavable 308,845 120,381 232367 92 661,635
Compensation prayable 132,371 11,662 1.466 - 145,459
Duc Lo other Tunds 11,443 - 280330 19,740 313
Dee to component uniis 28,107 - - - 28,107
Deferred revenoe 111,535 83.033 36,686 - 230,254
Acerucd liabilities 134,273 68,598 - 110 202,981
Other liabilitics 25,633 - 5307 - 30,940
Total lizhilities 751,207 283,674 556,156 19.942 1,610,979
Fund bulapces:
Reserved for:
(ieneral fund 345,414 - - - 543414
Special revenue funds - 235,799 - 57,137 292,930
Capital project expendilres - - 82,775 63,985 148,760
Linreserved, reported in:
General fund 319914 - - - 319,914
Special revenwe Munds - - - s 31751
Capital projeets funds - - [472.305) - {472.305)
Total fund balances 265,324 235,799 (389,530 154,873 866,470
Total liabilities and fund balances % 1,616,535 % 519,473 & 166,626 5 174,815
Amounts reported for governnental activities in the statement of
nul assels (Exhitnt a) are different hecause:
Capital assets used in governmuental activities are not financial
resources and theretore are not reported 1o the funds. 3,900,817
Adjustments for deferred revenues and other acerued liabilities {4.581)
Lonz-term liabilities, including bonds and notes payable, compensated
absences, claims and judgments, are not due and payable in the current
period and therefore are nat reported in the funds. (3.897.707)
Met assels of governmental aclivitics S 304,999

The accompanying notes are an iitegral parct of this statement.
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Basic Financial Statements

REVENUES
Taxes:
Property taxcs
Sales and wse taxes
Income and franchise taxes
(itgss receipls axcs
Onher taxes
Fines and forfals
Licenses and permils
Charges for services
Investment camings
Miscellaneous
Federat contnbutions
Operating granis
Total revénues

EXPENDITURES
Curenn
Governmental direction and suppaort
Leonomic development and regulation
Public safery and justice
Fublic cducatiot system
Humnan support service
Public works
Public transportalion
Xt Service:
Principal
Interest and other charges
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess {deficiency} of revenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (ISES)

Proceods from sale of honds

Payment to refunded bond escrow agent

Capatal lease proceeds

Transfers in

Inwmal transfer in (out)
Total other financing sources {nses)
Net change in fund balances
Fund balances at October 1, as restated

Fund balances at September 30

District (f Columbia
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures sl Changes in Fund Balances
sovernmental Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2002

Exhifiit 2-b

(5080s)
Federat General Nonmajor ‘Total
& Private Capital Gaovernmental Governmental
General Resources Improvements Funils Funds

5 $04.394 5 - 3 - $ 204,394
730,060 - - 750,060
1.160.423 - - - 1,160,423
231,786 - - 231.786
283,146 - - - 283,146
88.495 - - - #8495
2003 - - - 52.003
106,242 39,304 - - 143,546
10,350 3,204 3,529 19,283
179,505 45,592 30,113 54,051 332.861

- 490,616 161 450 - 652,066
1,399,028 - - 1,399,928

3.0066.004 1,978,440 214,767 0,180 3015991
339,819 26,504 - 358 366,981
113,695 108,063 - - 223,760
634,867 264,249 - 399,116
929983 213.293 - - L4328
1,080,729 1168574 - 2,249,303
146,780 2510 - - 149,202
148 493 36390 - 184,383
131,750 - - AT 138,575
1401432 - 43,574 189,006

- 7739 127.679 905,418

3,668,359 1.783,501 214,129 143,436 6,449,625
(1.955) 194.939 {390,362) {123.256) {529.634)
72,525 - 216010 119,645 408,130
(69, 487) - - - (69.487)

- - 51,944 - 31,944
63,000 - - - 63,000
(31628} 13,181 {14,901) 38,348 -

29410 13,181 253.053 157,993 433,637
27455 208,120 (346,300) 34,737 (75,997}
837,873 27,679 {43.221) 120,136 942,467

) 865,328 8 235,799 (339.530) § 154873 §$ 866,470

The accompanying notes ave an itegral part of this siatement.
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Financial Section Basic Financial Statements

Exhilsit 2

District of Columbia
Recenciliation of the Staterment of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances of Government Famis
to the Statement of Activitics
For the Year Ended September 30, 2002
($000s)

Net change in fund balances - wtal govemmental funds

3 (73,997)
Amounts reperted for govemmniental activities in the statemment of activities are differcnt becawse:
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities.
the cost of thase assets is allocated over their estimated usctbl lives as depreciation expense.
This is the amount by which capital outlays cxeceded depreciation in the current pericd. 343,061
Revenucs in the stateiment of activities that do net provide current inancial resources are not reported as
revemies in the funds. 3,737
Bond procecds provide curvent financial resources 1o govemmental funds, but issuing debt increases long-term
liabilitics i the staterment of net assets. Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the govermimental
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilitics m the staternent of net assets. This is the amount
by which proceeds exceeded repayments. (206,006)
Some expenses reporied i the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and
therefore are not reportedl as expenditures in povernmental funds. (26,0249
Change in net assets of govemmental activities 5 40,696

The aceompanying notes are an integrad part of this statement.
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Financial Section Basic Financial Statements

Fxhibit 3-a

District Of Columbia
Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2002

(S000s}
Lottery and Unemployment
Games Compensation Total
ASSETS
Current assels:
Cash and cosh eguivalents (unrestricted) b 8300 & - 5 8,309
Investments {unrestiicied) .63 - 8031
Accounts receivable, net 4,577 16,933 21510
Duge from other funds - 089 498G
[ue from federal governiment - 3910 3910
Invenlories 683 - H83
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - 208,855 298855
Other current assgis 5 - 5
Total current assets 22,205 J20,687 342,892
MNoncurrent assels:
Restricted mvestments T0158 - 70,158
Capital assets, net 1.495 - 1,495
Tetal noncurent assets 71,653 - 71,653
Total assets 93,858 320,687 414,545
1IABILITIES
Current liahilities:
Accounts payabie 2,935 20,336 23471
Comnpensated abscnces 726 - 726
Due to other funds - 28,312 28312
Accrued liabilitics 7.792 - 7.792
Deferred revenue 131 - 13}
Cher current ligbilitics 8,631 478 Q. 109
Total current liabilitics 20,215 49,326 09,54}
Noncurrent liabilities:
Prize anmanties payable 70,158 - 70158
Total noncurrent liabilities 70,158 - 70,158
Total Habilities 90,373 49,320 139,699
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 1,495 - 1,455
Restricted for unenploymient benefits - 271,361 271,361
Unrestricted 1,990 - 1,990
“Fotal net assets 3485 S 271,361 274 346

The accompaying noies are an integrad part of 1his statement.
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Basic Financial Statements Financial Section

Exhibit 3-b
bistrict Of Columbiz
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2002
(S000s)
Lotlery and L'nemployment
Games Compensation Total
Operating revenues:
Employur laxes 5 - 5 104945 % 104945
Charges for services 211,151 - 211,151
Benefit contributions - 17,360 17,360
Total operating revemnues 211,151 - 122,305 333,456
Operating expenscs:
Benellis - 191,043 191,043
Prizes 123,348 - 123348
Personnel services 5,727 - 5727
Contractual services 11,310 - 1R300
Malerials and supplics 6% - 69
Qccupancy 2,357 - 2,357
Dreprecialion 191 - 11
Miseelaneous 5468 - 5468
Total operating expenses 148,670 191,043 339,713
Operating income (loss) 62,481 (68,738) {60,257}
Nonmoperating revenues (expenses)
Intierest and iNvestment revenue 630 18,348 18,978
[ittergovernmenial - 31,045 31,948
Total nonoperating revenue (expenses) 630 50,296 50.926
Income {[oss) before transfers 63,111 {1%,442) 44,669
Transiers out {63,000) - {63,000}
Chanye in net assets 111 {18,442) (18,331}
‘Foral net assets al October 1, as restated 3,374 289,803 293,177
Total net assets at Sceptember 30 5 3485 §% 271,361 8 274,840

Yhe accompanying notes are an integral part of this siatement.
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Financial Section Basic Financial Statemenis

Fxhibit 3-¢

Thistrict OF Columbia
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprictary Funds
For the Year Ended September 34, 2002

{$000s)
Lottery and Unemployment
Games Compensation Tota)
Opcrating Activities:
Cash receipts from customers/employers 5 210,522 113,942 § 324,404
{ash payments to vendars {19,208) - (19,208}
Cash payments to employees/claimants {5.042) {167,277} {172,919)
Other cash payments. including prizes (1240200 - (124.020)
MNei cash provided by {used for) operating activities 61,652 {33,335} 8.317
Capitzal and Related Financing Activities:
Acquisitions of capilal assets {358) - {358)
Net cash used by capital & related financing activitics (338) - (358)
Noneapital Financing Activities:
Incrgovernmental grants - 31,948 31,048
Interfund ransfers out {63,000) - {6:3,000)
Net cash provided by {used for) nencapital financing
activitics {63.000) 31,948 (31,052}
Investing Activilies:
Reccipts of interest and dividends 630 18,348 18,978
Net cash provided by invesling activities 630 1B.348 18,978
DECREASE IN CASH {1.076) (3,039 (4,115)
Cash and cash equivalents at October 1 9,385 301,894 311,279
Cash and cash equivalents at September 30 3 8309 S 298855 8§ 307,164
Reconeiliation of Operating Income to
Net Cash Provided by (wsed for) Operating Activities:
Operating income (loss) 3 62481 S (08.738) § {6,257}
Depreciation 191 - 191
Decrcase (INCTease) in assets:
Receivables {647) (8,363) {5,010}
Inventories {126) - {126}
Increase {(decrease) in liabilities:
Payables 204 23.483 23,687
Accrued habilities {472} - (472)
Defirmed revenue 18 _ 18
Other current Habilities 3 283 286
Net Cash Provided by (used for) Operating Activities: b8 61,652 § (53.335) & 8,317

The accompanying notes are an imtegrad part of this statement.
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Basic Financial Statements

Financial Section

Exhibit 4-a
District Of Columbia
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
September 30, 2002
($000s)
Pension
Trust Agency
Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted $ 325,956 % 105,022
[nvestments - restricted 1,631,327 -
Receivables 2,635 -
Due from other funds 78 -
Other current assets - 9,231
Total assets 1,959,996 114,253
LIABILITEES
Accounts payable 7,908 44,010
Securities lending 134,534 -
Other current liabilities - 70,156
Due to other funds 611 87
Total labilities 143,053 § 114,253
NET ASSETS
Restricted for pension benefits b 1,816,943

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

District of Columbia
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Financial Section Basic Financial Statements

Exhtbit 4-b
District Of Columbia
Statement of Changes in Fidociary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
September 30, 2002
{8000s)
Pension
Trust
Funds
ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Employer b 74,600
Plan Members 44 764
Total contributions 119,364
Investment earnings:
Net decrease in fair value of investments (216,361)
Intercst 59,468
Total investment earnings (156,893)
Less investment expense 8,047
Net investment earnings {165,540}
Total additions (46,176}
DEDUCTIONS
Benefits payments 7,022
Adnunistrative expenses 2,434
Total deductions 9,456
Change in net assets (55,632)
Net assets at October 1 1,872,575
Net assets at September 30 $ 1,816,943

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

44 A A A District of Columbia



Basic Financial Statemients

Financial Section

Exhibit 5-a

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

September 30, 2002

(3000s)
Water amd Convention Sports Huousing Lniver-
Sewer Center Copmemission Finanee sifv Tutuls
ASSETS
Cuorrent Asscls:
Cash and cash equivalents 13234 [RRGITER g 215 N SN LR
lovestments MY F.A33 ] - HOAGS 2RO49%
Ecceivables, net:
Accounts 273 3TG 253 THE2 39,257
Oreher A5 23 1w b4 24,652
Due leom federat government - - 4,380 IN3i2
Due (rom prinvasy sovernment 4,536 - - 5,633 IRENT
Inventones - - - - ekt
Other current assets 3 - STH . t4 647
Restricled cash Qi 295 651 - 2y 21 S0606
Restricted investments - 236,563 - GEdE 0 RN 926,377
Total current assets 313.a%e 87,487 9113 63214 ah. 314 1,347,017
Moncurrent assets:
Loans receivahle - - 141 780 3 34722350
Other - - - |5.0053 - 150333
Delerred charges 24,707 G057 - 15,700 - 47 604
Totz] Tong term assets 24,707 257 - 372552 570 4007 0067
Capital assety, net;
Froperty and cyuipment E457973 624,835 13,145 3.194 276492 2. 138,730
Totil assets |, R06.569 015,579 24278 1,058,841 H¥T, 576 3,012 843
LIARILITIES
Cuorrent Liabilitics:
Pavables:
Accounts 44 41210 45,457 381 1.55¢ 22372 [RENEY
Compeusatiun 7444 [ 1,770 173 - 10157
Due to primary government [1.78% - 177 - - L1893
Accrued liabilives 15,123 120476 1.272 47023 - 290
IDeferred revenue 31504 11,591 16t 1722 32604 51046
Current maturities [ SRk - - 14,403 . 12233
Other current lizbilities 5969 16,156 - 15077 - 31,233
Totz] current habilities F3LR0OG 87 Mk 37610 6954 27041
Noncurrent Eiabilities:
Lung tenn debr:
Bouds payable J494p20 318394 - L ER-DE - TH06LGI0
Other long term liabilities 17,046 10 5t BT 3R2T2
Refundable advances - - - T 726
Deferred revenue 4350 035 - - 265 - 453 2960
Total long tenn Tizhilitics 52997 518,206 - 906,207 2,934 3145 604
Tutal liabilities 1051803 606,304 3,760 53,182 30618 2,675,674
NET ASSETS
lnvested in capital assets, net ot related debe S34ly [N RS 15,0405 FRTIER] STV 724,363
Restricted - expendable 41.5496 141,204 - 53,749 34 28090
Restricted-non-vxpendable - - . 9452 9,432
Unresticied [ 78,331 2375 3,353 I0LRRT 9486 216,352
Total net assets 754766 300275 % 0518 75,659 3 T6.951 & 1,237,169

The accompanying notes are an integral part of ihis siaiemens.
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Exhibit 5-b
DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
COMBINING SFATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Year Ended September 30, 2002
($000s)
Water and Convention Sports Housing Univir-
Sewer Center Conunission Finance sity Totals
Operating Revenues:
Charges for simvices:
Public 3 203,712 § 9071 8 730§ 40,009 $ 16,058 % 282,461
Intereovenimentat 44,907 - - - - 44,997
Federal & local grants & contributions - - - - 0832 20,832
Miscellancous - - - 12,930 Sl 13,774
Total operating revenucs 248,729 0.071 7,500 50,029 37,734 362,004
Operating Expenses:
Personal services 62,162 12,077 4397 3,237 34,135 136,008
Contractual semvices 549,166 3,580 3153 3,398 12,266 53,503
Supplics 13.683 311 409 - 5,045 20,048
Oceupancy 20,071 1,775 SE3 4216 2,367 20012
Depreciation 37,0099 472 1,414 237 4,430 43,652
Misceltaneous 16,904 387 1,660 42,828 4,879 66,638
Total operating expenses 209,085 20,602 11,646 33,916 83,722 378,971
OPERATING INCOMLE (LOSS) 30,644 {11,531) (4,145) 5113 {45,988} {16,907}
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Intergovenungntal - 53574 - 46,008 00042
Interest revenue {loss) 6,800 244 {42) HL210 1,641 19,899
Interest expense {16.33%) - - - - (106,339}
FIUD section & receipes & service projoct granis - - B 14,301 - 19,301
Program and housing assistance payments - - - (19,301) - (19,301}
Other revenue {expenses) {15,228) (6,060} 2,177 {6R) 887 {18,292}
Total nonoperating revenues {expinses) {24,761) 48,058 2,135 11,142 48,630 83,210
INCOMLE (LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS 14,843 36,327 {2,010) 16,255 2,048 68,303
Capital eontributions 18,548 - - - 2,953 21,801
Total contnbutions L&, 548 - - - 2,953 21,501
Change in net assets 33,731 36,527 (2,000) 16,255 5,601 00,104
INet assets
at Octeber T (restated) 721,035 272,748 22,528 59,404 71,350 1,147 065
Net assets
at September 30 3 754,766 § 39,275 § 20,518 % 75,659 $ 76951 % 1,237,169

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement,
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(Dollars in Thousands)

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

{Amounts expressed in thousands)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. BACKGROUND AND HISTORY OF
GOVERNMENTAL UNIT

General Operations

The District of Columbia (District) was created on March
30, 1791 and became the patien's capital on December 1,
1800, in accordance with Article 1, section 8, clause 17 of
the United Statcs Constitution.  This portion of the
Coenstitution empowered Congress to establish the seat of
government for the United States. On Japuary 2, 1975,
Congress granted the District a Home Rule Charter,
which became effective through the enactment of the
District of Columbia Self-Government and Governmental
Reorganization Act, Public Law 93-198.

The District is a municipal corporation, which operates
under an elected Mayor-Council form of government.
Accordingly, an Act of the Council, other than a budget
request act, becomes a law unless Congress and the
President disapprove it after it has been adopted. Citizens
of the District have the right to vote for the President and
Vice-President of the Unifed States but not for members
of Congress. The District does, however, have an elected
nonvoting delegate to the United States House of
Representatives.

Due to its umque organizational structure {i.c., not a part
of any other state government), the District provides a
broad range of services to its residents, including those
normally provided by a state. These services include
public safety and protection, fire and emergency medical
services, human support and welfare services, public
education and many others.

B. FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

A financial reporting entity consists of a primary
government and its component units.  The primary
government is the District of Columbia, including alt of
the organizations that make up its legal entity. Criteria to
be considered in delermuning organizations to be included
as component units within the District's reporting entity
are as follows:

¢ The District holds the corporate powers of the
organization.

s The District appoints a voting majority of the
organizatton's board.

¢ The District is able to impose its will on the
organization.

* The organization has the potential to impose a
financial benefit'burden on the District.

e  The organization is fiscally dependent on the District.

+ It would be misleading to exclude the organization
from the District’s financial report.

Based on the aforementioned criteria, the District’s
financial statcments include five discretely presented
component  units: Water and Sewer Authority,
Washington Cenvention Center, Sports and Entertainment
Commission, Housing Finance Agency, and the
University of the District of Columbia. These
organizations are presented in a separate column to
emphasize that they are legally separate from the District.

The Mayor, with the consent of the Council, and other
District officials appoint the goveming bodies of all
component units. The District has an obligation to
provide financial support to the Housing Finance Agency
and the University of the District of Columbia. In
addition, the District must approve certain transactions of
the Convention Center and the Sports and Entertainment
Commisston, and certain tax revenues are dedicated to
these organizations. The Water and Sewer Autherity is
responsible for the payment of certain District long-term
debt issued before that entity’s creation to finance capital
improvements for its predecessor agency. For that reason,
in conjunction with the fact that the Water and Sewer
Authority is an independent authority under its enabling
legislation, this entity is included as a component unit of
the District of Columbia. Information on how te obtain a
complete set of financial statements f{or each entity can be
obtained at the following locations:
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Washington Convention Center
General Manager

900 Ninth Street, N. ' W.
Washington, D. C. 20005

Housing Finance Agency
Exccutive Director

815 Florida Avenue, NW
Washington, D. C. 20001

Sports and Entertainment Comnission
General Manager

2001 East Capitol Sireet, S.E.
Washington, D. C. 200063

The District established the District of Columbia Tobacco
Settlement  Financing Corporation  (the “Tobacco
Corporation”} as a special purpose, independent
instrumentality of the District government. The Tobacco
Corporation is a blended component unit because it
provides services exclusively to the District, the District
appoints all members of the governing body of the
Corporation, and thus is able to impose its will. Separate
audited financial statements for the Tobacco Corporation
are available from the Office of the Chief Financial
Officer, 1350 Pennsylvanta Avemue, N.W. Suite 209,
Washington, D.C. 2004.

C, RELATED ORGANIZATIONS

A related organization is one for which the primary
government is  accountable but not financially
accouniable. The District of Columbia Housing
Authority, the National Capital  Revitalization
Corporation, and the District of Columbia Courts arc
related organizations because the District is not
financially accountable for them despite the fact the
Mayor appoints a voting majority of their governing
boards, except the Courts. The District does not appoint
the members of the Joint Committee on Judicial
Administration.

D. JOINT VENTURE

The District is a participant with other local jurisdictions
In a joint venture to plan, construct, finance and operate a
public  transit system scrving  the  Metropolitan
Washington Area Transit Zone, which includes the
District of Celumbia; the cities of Alexandria, Falls
Church, Fairfax, Manassas and Manassas Park and the
counties of Arlinglon, Fairfax, Loudoun and Prince
William in Virgima and Montgomery, Anne Arundel and

University of the District of Columbia
President

Van Ness Campus

4200 Connecticut Avenue, N. W.
Washington, D. C. 20008

Water and Sewer Anthority
General Manager

5000 Overlook Avenue, 5. W,
Washington, D, C. 20032

Prince George’s in  Maryland. The Washington
Metropolitan Area Transit Authority (WMATA} was
created in February 1967 for that purpose. WMATA is
governed by a six member Board and six aiternates,
composed of two Directors and two altermates cach from
Maryland, Virginia and the District of Columbia. The
Directors and altcrnates for Virgima are appointed by the
Northern Virginia Transportation Commission from
among its members; for the District of Columbia, by the
Council from its members and mayoral nominees; and for
Maryland, by the Washington Suburban Transit
Commission from among its members. Further
information regarding this joint venture is discussed in
Note 10.

E. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

In Junc 1999, GASE issued Statement No. 34, Basic
Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion and
Analysis — for State and Local Governments. This
statement, known as the “Reporting Model” statement,
affects the way the District prepares and presents financial
information. State and local govermments traditionally
have used a financial reporting model substantially
different from the one used to prepare private-sector
financial reports.

GASB Statement No. 34 established new requirements
and a new reporting model for the annual financial reports
of state and local governments. The Statement was
developed to make annual reports easier to understand
and more useful to the people whe use govermmental
financial information to make decisions. The new
mnformation required by GASB Statement No. 34 is:

e Management's Discussion uand Analysis — GASB
Statcment No. 34 requires that financial statements
be accompanied by 2 narrative introduction and
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analytical overview of the government’s financial
activitics in the form of “Management’s Discussion
And Analysis” (MD&A)Y. This analysis is similar to
analysis the private sector provides in their annual
Ieports.

o Government-Wide Financial Statements — The new
reporting model requires financial statements to be
prepared using full accrual accounting for all of the
Distriet’s activitics. This approach includes not just
current asscts and liabilities (such as cash and
accounts payabie) but also capital assets and long-
tenm labilities {such as buildings and infrastruciure,
including bridges and roads, and gencral obligation
debt). Accrual accounting also reports all of the
revenues and cost of providing services each year,
not just those received or paid in the current year or
soonn  thereafter. Government-wide  financial
statements mnclude the following new statcments to
be presented:

—  Statement of Net Assets — The Statement of Net
Assets displays the financial position of the
District  {govermmental and  business-fype
activitics) and its discretely presented component
units. The District reports all capital assets,
including infrastructure, i the government-wide
Statement of Net Assets. The net assets of a
government will be broken down inte three
categories — 1) invested in capital assets, net of
related debt; 2) restricted; and 3) unrestricted.

- Statement of Aectivities — The Statement of
Activities reports expenses and revenues in a
format that focuses on the cost of each of the
District’s functions. The expense of individual
functions is compared to the revenues generated
directly by the function (for instance, through
user charges or intergovernmental grants). The
District reports depreciation expense-the cost of
“using up” capital assets- in the Statement of
Activities.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund accounting is used to demonstrate legal compliance
and to aid financial management by segregating
transactions related to certain Distrnict functions or
activities. Each fund 1s considered to be a separate
accounting entity and the transactions in each are
summarized by providing a separate set of self-balancing
accounts which include its assets, labilities, fund equity,
revenucs and expenses/expenditures.

Separate  financial  statements are provided for

governmental funds, proprictary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though fiduciary funds are excluded from the
government-wide financial statements.  Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds
are reported as separate columns in the fund financial
statements. :

Governmental Funds are used to account for all of the
District's general activities. The acquisition, use and
balances of the District's expendable financial resources
and the related liabilitics {except those accounted for in
the Proprietary Funds and the discretely presented
component units) are accounted for in the Governmental
Funds. The District reports the following major
governmental funds:

o General Fund, used to account for all fnancial
resources not accounted for in other funds

s Federal and Private Resources Fund, used to account
for proceeds of intergovermmental grants and other
federal payments and private grants that are legally
restricted to expenditure for specified purposes.

o General Capital fmprovement Fund, used to account
for the purchase or construction of capital assets
financed by operating transfers, capital grants or debt.

Non-Major Governmental Funds includes two Special
Revenue Funds: (1) Tax Increment Financing (TIF)
Program Fund (2) Tobacce Settlement Financing
Corperation {TSFC) Fund; and onc Capital Project’s
Fund: Highway Trust Fund.

Proprietary Funds are used to account for activitics
similar to those found in the private sector where the costs
{including depreciation) of providing goods or services
primarily or solely to the public on a continuing basis are
or could be financed or recovered primarily through user
charges, and the determination of net income 15 necessary
or useful to sound financial administration. The District
has two major proprietary funds, which are discussed
below:

o Lottery and Games Fund - Used to account for
revenues from lotteries and daily numbers games
opcrated by the District and from licenses to conduct
bingo games and raffles, and related prizes, cxpenses
and capital outlays. Gambling  activities are
administercd by a Lottery and Charitable Games
Control Board consisting of five members appointed
by the Mayor with the consent of the Council.

o Unemployment Compensation Fund - lsed to
account for the accumuiation of resources to be used
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for benefit payments to uncmployed former
cmpleyees of the District and federal government and
of private emplovers in the District. Resources are
contributed by private employers at rates fixed by
law and by the District and federal government on a
reimbursable basis. The administrative costs of the
program arc accounted for in the General Fund.

Fiduciary Funds arc used 1o account for asscts held by
the District in a trustec capacity or as an agent for
individuals, private organizations and other governments.
The District only reports Pension Trust Funds and Agency
Funds.  Pension trust funds are accounted for in
essentially the same manners as proprietary funds since
capital maintenance is critical.  Agency funds are
custedial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not
involve measurcment of results of operations. [Fiduciary
funds are not included in the government-wide financial
statements.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements {i.e. the
statements of nct asscts and the statements of changes in
net assets) report information on all of the non-fiduciary
activities of the District and its componcnts units.
Governmental Activities, which normally arc supported
by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, arc rcported
separately from Business-Type Activities, which rely to a
significant cxtent on fees and charges for support.
Likewise, the primary government is reported separately
from certain legally separate component units for which
the primary government 1s financrally accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to
which the direct expenses of a given function or segment
are offsef by program revenues. Direct expenses are those
that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or
segment. Program revenues include fines and forfeitures,
charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from goods, scrvices, or privileges
provided by a given function or segment, and grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational
or capital requirements of a particular function or
scgment. Taxes and other items not properly included
among program revenues are reported as general
revenues.

F. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF
ACCOUNTING

Measurement focus refers to what is being measured;
basis of accounting refers to when revenues and
expenditures/expenses are recognized in the accounts and
reported 1n the financial statements. Thus, the accounting

and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund or
activity is determined by its measurement focus.

Measurement Focus

All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of
currcnt {inancial resources mcasurement focus and the
modified accmal basis of accounting.  With this
measurement focus, only current assets and current
liabilitics gencrally are included on the balance sheet.
Operating statements of thesc funds present increascs
{revenues and other financing sources) and decreases
{expenditures and other financing uses) in net current
assets.

The proprictary funds, pension trust funds, discretely
presented component units, and the govermment-wide
financial statements are accounted for on a flow of
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned
and expenses arc recorded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. With this
measurcment focus, all assets and all liabilities are
included on the balance sheet. Net asscts of the
government-wide and proprietary funds are segregated
mlo capital assets, net of related debt, restricted and
unresiricted  components. The related operating
statements present increases (revcnues} and decreases
(expenses) 1n net assets. Operating statements of pension
trust funds present additions and deductions in fiduciary
net assets.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial
reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are
followed in both the government-wide and proprietary
fund financial statements to the extent that those standards
do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The District
also has the option of following private-sector guidance
issued after November 30, 1989 for its business-type
activitics and proprietary funds and component units. As
allowed by GASB 20, the District has elected to follow
only those Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles
Board (APB) Opiniens, and Accounting Research
Bulletins (ARB), issued prior to December i, 1989.

As a general rule, the effect of mterfund activity has been
eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-
in-liew of taxes and other charges between the
government’s water and sewer function and various other
functions of the government,

Proprictary funds distingwsh operating revenues and
cxpenscs from non-operating items. Operating revenues
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and expenscs generally result from providing services and
producing and delivering goods in conncction with a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.

Basis of Accounting

All governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of

accounting.  Under the modified accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to
accrual {that is when they become both measurable and
available.)  "Mecasurable" means the amount of the
transaction can be determined and "available” means
collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to be used o pay liabilities of the current
period. Property taxes are considered available if they are
collected within 60 days after year-end. A onc-year
availability period is used for revenue recognition for all
other governmental fund revenues. Expenditures are
recorded when the rclated fund liability is incurred.
GASE Interpretation Number 6 (GASBI 6) modified the
recognition criteria of certamn expenditures and liabilities,
GASBI 6 requires that expenditures and liabilities such as
debt service, compensated absences, claims and
judgments, and spectal termination benefits be rccorded in
the governmental fund statements only when they mature
or become due for payment within the period. Such
activity 1s recorded in the government-wide financial
statements as incutred.

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are taxes, federal
contributions and grants, charges for services and
investment income. Property taxes are recognized as
revenue in the tax year for which they are levied,
provided they arc available. Real property taxes are levied
as of October t on properly values assessed as of the
preceding January 1. The tax levy is due and collectible
in two equal installments on March 31 and September 15.
On these dates, the bill becomes delinguent and the
District may asscss penalties and interest. Real property
taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of
October 1 of the year after ievy. Sales and use taxes are
recognized as revenue when the sales or uses take place,
Interest on investments is recognized when eamed.
Charges for services are recorded as revenues as services
are provided.

In the District, the personal property tax is self-assessed.
The District requires a personal property tax return for the
tax year beginning July 1 - June 30 each year to be filed
ent or before July 31 of that tax year. The return should
report the remaining cost (current value) of all tangible
personal property that has taxable sites in the District of
Columbia as of July 1. The property taxes become levied
once the returns are filed. However, the District does not
have a legal claim to a provider’s resources that is
enforcecable through the eventual seizure of the property

until after July 31 if the taxpayer fails to pay the property
tax when due.  The revenue budget for the Personal
Property Tax is formulated with the understanding that
25% of collections are to be allocated to the current fiscal
year, while the remaining 75% ure to be allocated to the
immediate subsequent fiscal year.

Intergovernmental revenues are amounts derived through
agreements with other governments. In general, these
revenues are comprised of contributions and grants made
by the Federal government to the Dhstrict.  Contributions
are recognized as revenue when received.  Generally,
entitlements and shared revenues are recognized as
revenue when received or earlier, if measurablc and
available. Resources arising from grants arc usually
subject to certain eligibility requircments; therefore, most
grant revenues are recognized as revenue only when the
conditions of the grant are met. Grant funds received
before all eligibility requirements are met are recorded as
deferred revenuc.

Licenses and permuts, fines and forfeits and charges for
services are not considered susceptible to accrual because
they are not both measurable and available to finance
expenditures of the current period. Licenses and permits
and fines and forfeits are recorded as revenue when
received in cash because they are generally not
nweasurable until received.

The government-wide financial statements, proprietary
funds, and pension trust funds use the accrual basis of
accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded
when carncd and expenses are tecorded at the time the
liabilities are incurred. The pension trust funds recognize
additions to net assets from participants’ contributions
when due, District contributions when due and a formal
commitment bas been made, net investment mcome as
earned, and expenditures for benefits and refunds when
due and payable.

Food Stamps

The District participates m the federal government’s food
stamp program, which is designed to increase the food
purchasing power of econorcally disadvantaged people.
The District uses the Electronic Benefits Transfer (EBT)
systems that allow program beneficiaries to charge their
qualifying food purchases, thereby eliminating the need
for paper stamps. Thus, revenues and expenditures are
reported when the underlying transaction (the food
purchase) occurs. The District records the existence of
any food stamps as of the date of the balance sheet as

assets and deferred revenues.
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G. BASIS OF BUDGETING AND
BUDGETARY CONTROL POLICIES

Process

About February 1 of each year, the Mayor submits to the
Council an all sources budget for the general fund, for the
fiscal year commencing the following October 1. The
Council holds public hearings and adopts the budget
through passage of a budget request act. The Mayor may
not forward and the Council may not adopt any budget for
which expenditures and other financing uses exceed
revenues and other financing sources. A project-length
financial plan is adopted for the General Capital
Improvements Fund. About April 1 of each year, the
Mayor approves the adopled budget and forwards it to the
President of the Umted States for review. About April 15
of cach year, the President submits the reviewed budget to
Congress which conducts public hearings and enacts the
budget and thc authorized Federal payment in licu of
taxes though passage of an appropriation law.

Appropriation Act

The legally adopted budget 1s the anmual appropriation
public law {Appropriation Act) enacted by Congress and
signed by the President. The Appropriation  Act
authorizes expenditures at the function level or by
functional category, such as Public Safety and Justice,
Human Support Services or Public Education. Congress
must enact a revision that alters the total expendifures of
any function. The District may request a revision to the
apprepriated expendifure amounts in the Appropriation
Act by submitting to the President and Congress a request
for a supplemental appropriation.

Pursuant to the Reprogramming Policy Act (D. C. Code
47-361), the District may recallocate budget amounts
within functions. The appropriated budget amounts in the
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances-—Budget and Actual include all approved
reallocations. This statement reflects budget to actual
comparisons at the function level {or appropriation title).
Appropriated actual expenditures and uses may not
legally exceed appropriated budgeted expenditures and
uses at the function level as shown on this statement. An
unfavorable expenditure wvariance in the budgetary
statement for a function is a violation of the Anti-
Deficiency Act {31 US.C. 1341). Also, a violation of the
Anti-Deficiency Act exists if there is an unfavorable
expenditure variance for a particular purpose or object of
expenditure within an appropriation.

The Appropriation Act specifies expenditures and net
surplus or deficit of revenues. The Appropriation Act
does not specily revenue amounts. The legally adopted

revenue budget 15 based prnmarily on the revenue
estimates submitted to the President and Congress as
modified through legislation. The Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances—Budget and Actual shows Revenues and Other
Sources as presented in the Conference Report (H.R. 107-
593) and Expenditures and Other Uses as contained in the
Appropriation Act (PL 107-96.)

The budgetary general fund differs from the GAAP- basis
general fund and federal and private resources fund. For
budgetary purposes, the general fund must be considered
in conjunction willh the federal and private resources
major fund as presented in Exhibit 2d. In fiscal year
2002, the District elected to separatc the federal and
private rescurces fund from the general fund in order to
enhance stakeholders understanding ol the gencral
operations of the District.  The annual appropriated
budget is enacted on a basis that is not consistent with
GAAP because of differences that result from budgeting
inventory, Medicaid, certain pension and other employee
benefits, and other expenditures on a cash basis, and
budgeting dedicated tax revenues to the benefiting fund
rather than to the fund with the authority to levy and
collect the tax.

Adjustments necessary to reconcile the excess
{deficiency) of revenucs and other financing sources over
expenditures and other financing uses from budget basis
to GAAP basis are shown in Exhibit 2-d, Budgetary
Comparison Statement.

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders,
contracts, and other commitments for the expenditure of
funds are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the
appropriation, is cmployed in the governmental funds.
Encumbrances outstanding at year-end do not constitute
expenditures or liabilities for GAAP or budgetary
purposes. The fund balance is ‘"reserved for
encumbrances” to indicate the portion that is available for
expenditure npon vendor performance,

H. CASH AND INVESTMENTS
Cash

Cash from the governmental and proprietary funds and
certain compenent units 1s pooled unless prohibited by
law. The cash management pool 1s considered to be cash
because it is used as a demand deposit account by each
participating fund and component unit. If a fund
overdraws its share of the poeled cash, that fund reports a
lLiability to the general fund, which is deemed to have

District of Columbia % * % 53



Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

(Daoflars in Thousands)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

loaned the cash to the overdrawn fund. The general fund
reports a recervable [rom the overdrawn fund.

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
mature in such a short peried of time that their valucs arc
effectively imrmume [rom changes n interest rates. The
District’s cash management pool is considered a cash
equivalent. For an mmvestment to be considered a cash
equivalent, 1t must nmalure no meore than three months
after the date 1t is purchased.

Investments

Any cash that is not nceded for immediate dishursement
is used to purchase investments. The District purchases
legally autherized investments consistent  with  the
provisions of the "Financial Institutions Deposit and
Investment Amendment Act of 1997" {D.C. Law 12-36),
which became effective March 18, 1998, At September
30, 2002 the District has invested primarily in
investments backed by U. S. government agencies'
securities, with the implicit gunarantee of the federal
government. Such mvestments are considered te be the
equivalents of cash. The Pension Trust Funds are also
authorized to invest in fixed income, equity securities and
other types of investnients.

Money market investments that have a remaining
maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less are
reported at amortized cost, which appreximates fair value.
Other investments are reported at fair value. Securities
traded on a national or international exchange are valued
at the last reported sales price at current exchange rates.
Asset-backed securities are valued on the basis of future
principal and interest payments and arc discounted at
prevailing interest rates for similar  investments.
Investment purchases and sales arc recorded as of the
trade date. These transactions are not finalized until the
settlement date. Cash received as collateral on securities
lending transactions and investments made with such are
reported as assets and as related liabilities for collateral
received.

L RESTRICTED ASSETS

Certain governmental and proprietary funds, component
amt, and all fiductary fund assets are restricted as to use
by legal or contractal requirements. Any excess of
restricted assets over liabilities payable from restricted
asscts is reported as part of the restricted net assets in the
government-wide, proprictary, and fiduciary financial
statements, and rcserved fund  balance in the
governmental fund to indicatc the portion of the net assets
or fund balance that is available for restricted purposes

only. Restricted assets also represents cash deposited in
bank accounts legally restricted for certain purposes such
as the payment of bond principal and interest or the
payment of fiscal fees on long-term debt.

J. PREPAID ITEMS AND DEFERRED
CHARGES

Prepaid items are for payments made by the District in the
current year for services to be received in the subsequent
fiscal year. Such advance payments are recorded as
prepaid charges at the time of prepayment and recognized
as expenditures/expenses when the related services are
received.

In governmental funds, bond discounts (premiums) amnd
Issuance costs are recognized in the current period as
mterest and fiscal charges, respectively. In the
government-wide financial statements, bond discounts
(premiums) and issuance costs are capitalized as deferred
charges and amortized as fiscal charges over the term of
the related bonds.

K. RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Taxes receivable are taxes levied by the Daistrict,
including interest and penalties on delinquent taxes,
which have not been collected, canceled or abated, less
the portion of the receivables estimated not to be
collectible.  Accounts receivable are amounts owed by
customers for goods or services sold. Intergovernmental
receivables are amounts owed by other governments to
the District.

Accounts payable are amounts owed to vendors for goods
or services purchased and received. Intergovernmentai
payables are amounis owed to other governments.

L. TRANSFERS AND OTHER
TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN FUNDS

Interfund transactions are categerized as (a) revenues and
expense/expenditure transactions consisting of temporary
interfund transactions which inclide reimbursements and
quasi-external transactions or (b} reallocation of resources
transactions  including termporary interfund loans,
advances or operating transfers. Reimbursements
between funds occur when expenditures/expenses made
from one fund are properly applicable to another fund.

Activity between funds that arc rcpresentative of
lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of
the fiscal year are referrcd to as cither “due to/from other
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funds” (i.c., the non-current portion of interfund louns) or
“advances to/from other funds™ {i.e., the current portion
of imterfund loans). All other outstanding balances
between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds.”
Any residual  balances outstanding between the
governmental activities and business-type activities are
reported in the government-wide financial statements as
“inlernal balances.,” Short-term amounts owed hetween
the primary government and a discretely presented
component unit are classified as “Due to/from primary
government” and “Due to/from component unit” on
statement of net assets.

Transfers are included in the results of operations of both
the governmental and proprietary funds.  Accordingly,
transfers are reported in the "Other Financing Sources
(Uscs)'  section of the statement of revenues,
expenditurcs, and changes in fund balance (govemmental
funds) and in the "Transfers” section in the statement of
revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets (proprictary
funds).

M. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment,
and land improvements (infrastructure) such as roads,
bridges, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems, lighting
systems, and similar items), are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities or component
units  columms  in  the government-wide financial
statements and proprietary fund financial statements. All
purchased capital assets are stated at cost when historical
records are available and at estimated historical cost when
no historical records exist.  Assets acquired through
capital leases are stated at the lesser of the present value
of the Tease paymemnts or the fair value of the asset at the
date of lease inception. Donated capital asscts arc stated
at their estimated fair market value on the date received.
The cost of maintenance and repairs that de not add te the
value of the assets or materially extend asset lives are not
capitalized. Betterments are capitalized over the
remaining useful lives of the related capital assets. Capital
assets utilized in the governmental funds are recorded as
expenditurcs m the governmental fund financial
statements. Depreciation expense is recorded m the
government-wide financial statements, as well as the
proprietary funds and component units financial
statements.

Repairs and maintenance arc recorded as expenses;
renewals and betterments are capitalized.  Interest 1s
capitalized in the government-wide financial statements
for business-type activities and proprietary funds on
assets constructed with fong-term debt. The amount of
interest to be capitalized 1s calculated by offsetting

mterest expense incurred on tax-exempt debt from the
date of borrowing until completion of the project with
mnterest camed on invested proceeds over the same period.

Capitalization and Depreciation Policies

Asscts capitalized have an original cost of $5 or more per
unit. Depreciation has been calculated on each class of
depreciable  property using the straight-line  method,
Estimuted useful lives for capital assets are shown in
Table 1 by category.

Table 1 — Estimated Useful Lives {by Asset Category)

Usetul Life

Sewer Lines 30-45 years
Buildings 50 years
Furmiture, Fixtures and

Equipment 5-10 years
Vehicles 5-10 years
Land Improvements 30-45 years

N. CAPITAL LEASES

Leased property having elements of ownership 1s
recorded in the govemment-wide and proprietaty fund
financial statements. The related obligations, in amounts
equal to the present value of minimum lease payments
payable during the remaining term of the leases, are also
recorded in these financial statements.

0. COMPENSATED ABSENCES
Benefit Accumulation Policies

The District's policy allows employees to accumulate
unused sick leave, with no maximum limitation. Vacation
{annual) leave may be accumulated up to 240 hours,
depending on the employee’s length of service.

Accrual

The District records vacation and sick leave as an
expenditure and related Liability in the governmental fund
financial statements only to the extent that they mature ot
come duc for payment. Accumulated annual leave that
has not matured by the end of the current fiscal year is
reported in the government-wide financial statements.
Accumulated anmual leave of the proprictary funds and
discretely presented component units is recorded as an
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expense and liability as the benefits accrue (o employees.
The District does not record a Hability for non-vesting
accumulating rights to receive sick pay benefits. At the
time of retirement, unuscd sick leave is credited at the rate
of 22 days for each month of service and is added to the
retirees’ years of service in the Civil Service Retirement
System and in the District Retirement Program.

An accrual for earned sick leave is made to the extent that
it 15 probable that the benefits will result in termination
payments at time of retirement rather than be taken as
absences due to illness or other contingencies. The
District cstimates the sick leave Habilily based on the sick
leave accumulated at the balance sheet date by employees
who are currently eligible for retirement and to receive
sick leave payments upon separation, or who are expected
to become eligible in the future to receive such payments.
Accumulated compensatory leave in lieu of paid overtime
18 reported in the government-wide financial statements
and in the proprietary funds.

P. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Under the District of Columbia Home Rule Act, as
amended, no long-term general obligation debt {other than
refunding debt) may be issued during any fiscal year in an
amount which would cause the amount of the principal
and interest paid in any fiscal year on all general
obligation debt to exceed 17% of the total local revenues
of the then-current fiscal year in which the debt is issued.
The legal debt limitation is calculated annually by
dividing maximum annual principal and interest by
curreni-year total local-source revenues {excluding
revenue and debt of the Water and Sewer Authority,
pursuant to the Home Rule Act.)

General obligation bonds, revenue bonds and other long-
term labilities directly related to and intended to be paid
from proprietary funds or discrctely presented component
units are included m the accounts of such funds. All other
long-term indebtedness of the District, such as disability
compensation, compensated  absences, employee
separation incentives and accreted interest liabilities,
which have been incurred but not financed, are reported in
the government-wide financial statements. Such
obligations are to be paid through the District's general
fund.

Capital appreciation bonds are issued with a stated
interest rate of zero percent. The assoclated Interest is not
paid until the bonds mature.  Accreted interest is
calculated throughout the maturity periods of the bonds
and is rccorded in the government-wide financial
statements.  The accreted value of such bonds is the
current value, taking into account the interest that has

been accumulating and antomatically reinvested in the
bonds.

Q. RESTRICTED NET ASSETS AND FUND
BALANCE RESERVATIONS AND
DESIGNATIONS

The government-wide and proprietary [und financial
statements utilize a net assets presentation. Net asscts are
categorized as:

o [wvested in Capital Assefs, Net of Related Debt - This
category groups all capital asscts, including
infrasiructure, into one component of net assets.
Accumulated  depreciation and  the outstanding
balances of debt that are attributable to the
acquisition, construction or improvement of these
assets reducc the balance in this category.

»  Restricied Net Assets - This category presents net
assets subject to extemal restrictions imposed by
creditors, grantors, contributers, or laws or
regulations of other governments and restrictions
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation. Non-expendable restricted net
assets represent the portion of net assets that must be
held in pempetuity in accordance with  donor
stipulations.

o Unrestricted Net Assets - This category represents net
assets of the District, not restricted for any project or
other purpose.

It is the policy of the District to first apply restricted
resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for
which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are
available.

In the govemnmental fund financial statements, reserves
and designations segregate portions of fund balance/net
assets that are either not available or have been earmarked
for specific purposes. The amount of fund balance that is
available for future operations 1is presented as
"unreserved." Reservations of fund balance represent
amounts that are legally or statutorily identified for
specific purposes or portions that are not appropriable for
cxpenditure. Designations of fund balance represent
management's intent to fund fature projects, but do not
represent a legal or statutory requirement to do so.

As of September 30, 2002, the District had established the
following reservations (see Table 26):

Reserve for Debt Service—Bond Escrow — This portion of
fund balance represents that portion of investments held
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in escrow that are available for futurc debt service
obligations or requirements.

Reserve for Emergency and Contingency Cash Reserve
Fund — This portion of fund balance represents amounts
that, in accordance with lcgislative mandate, arc held in
an emcrgency reserve (und, to be used for unanticipated
and non-recurring, cxtraordinary needs of an cmergency
nature.

Reserve for Budget — This portion of fund balance
represents unused FY 2001 Budget Reserve amounts  that
arc available until expended.

Reserve for Long-Term Assets - This portion of fund
balance represcnts those long-term assets that are not
available for appropriation and expenditurc.

Reserve for Inventory — This portion of fund balance
represents that portion of 1nventories that is not available
for appropriation and expenditure.

Reserve Jor Purpose Restrictions - This portion of fund
balance represents grants received by the District that
must be used in accordance with grant-imposed
restrictions.

Reserve for Charter School Loan Fund - This portien of
fund balance is restricted for the purpose of providing
start up costs for new charter schools.

Reserve for Tobacco Settlement {TSFC) - This portion of
the District’s {und balance represents the fund balance
reserved for the purpose of paying future debt service and
related expenses associated with TSFC’s issuance of
Tobacco Settlement Asset-Backed Bonds in FY 2001.

Reserve for Future Benefits - This portion of fund balance
represents the portion of resources that is available for
benefit payments from the Pension Trust Funds.

Reserve for Highway Projects - This portion of fund
balance 1s restricted for the purpose of executing federal
highway projects.

R. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note §,
employecs may receive posi-retirement health care and
life insurance benefits. In fiscal year 2002, there were
7,124 pre-87 (Civil Service} and 10,015 post-87 (DC
Defined Contribution} employees, which totaled 17,139
employees who are eligible for such benefits. The cost of
providing such benefits to employees hired prior to
October 1, 1987 is borne by the federal government and

the District has no liability for this cest. Employecs hired
after September 34, 1987, pursuant to the D.C. Code 1-
622, who subsequently retire may be eligible to continue
their health care benefits.  Furthermore, in accordance
with D.C. Code 1-623, these employees may convert their
group life insurance to individual life insurance. The
Dustrict therefore bears respensibility for the cost relating
te employees hired after September 30, 1987, The
District does not record a liability for its portion of the
cost of post-reticement benefits but rather records such
cost as cxpenses/expenditures when premiums are paid.
The District has recognized 3314 for post-retirement
health and life insurance premiums paid during fiscal year
2002,  As of September 30, 2002, there were 220
annuitants that received these benefils.

S. USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of fimancial statements In conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and labilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and Habilities at the date of the general
purpase financial statements and the reperted amounts of
revenues, expenses and expenditures during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

T. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-
WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Explanation of certain differcnces between the
governmental fund balance sheet and the government-
wide statement of net assets

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a
reconciliation between fund balance - total governmental
funds and net assets — governmental activities as reported
in the government-wide statcment of net assets. One
element of that reconciliation explains that certain
liabilities are not reported under modified accrual
accounting basis including deferred 1evenue, but are
reported in the government-wide financial statements.

The details of the $(4,581) difference are as follows:

Deferred revenue $ 40,735
Accrued interest {45.316)
Net adjustment $(4,581)
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Explanation of certain differences between the
governmental  fund  statement of  revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the
government-wide statement of activities

The governmental fund statement of  revenues,
cxpenditures, and changes in fund balances includes a
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances —
total governmental funds and changes in net assets of
governmental activities as reported in the government-
wide statement of activities.

The details of the $343,061 difference arc as follows:

Capital outlay capitalized f 706,515

Less: Depreciation expense (155,288}
Loss on disposal of Lorton (171,094)
Net other disposals (1,579)
Net capital lease activity (35,493)

Net adjustment $ 343,061

The details of the $5,757 difference are as follows:

Deferred property taxes $4.674
Revenue from QZAB 1,083
Net adjustment $5.757

The details of the ${206,096) difference are as follows:

Bond proceeds $ (408,178)
Principal payments 202 082
Net adjustment $ (206,096)

The details of the $(26,029) difference are as follows:

Increase {decrease} in expenses due to
accrued liabilities:

Disability compensation $(31,352)
Accreted interest {2,572)
Accrued interest {3,705)
Compensated absences (10,293}
Claims and judgments 21,893
Net adjustment 3 (26,02%)

U. RESTATEMENTS

As a result of the adoption of GASE Statement No. 34, as
amended by GASD Statements no. 35, 37 and 38, and
GASB Interpretation No. 6, the District is reguired to
change its historical accounting policies regarding its
accounting for certain liabilities such as deferred revenue,
claims and judgments and interest.  Additionally, on
October 1, 2001, the District created the Federal and
Private Resources special revenue fund to account for

certain activities previously reporled in the General fhnd.
As a result, the following Oclober 1, 2001 [und balances
and net assets have becn restated:

General Fund

October 1, 2001, as previously reported  § 562,245

Net change due to adoption of GASB 34
and GASB Interpretation No. 6 303,307
Establishment of Federal and Private

Resources Fund (27.679
October 1, 2001, as Restated S 837.873

General Capital Improvements Fund

October 1, 2001, as previously reported  § (57,943)

Net change due fo adoption of GASB 34 14,722
October 1, 2001, as Restated $ (43.221)

Unemployment Compensation Fund

October 1, 2001, as previously reported  $ 303,604
Net change due to adopticn of GASB 34 13.801

Qctober 1, 2001, as Restated 3 289.803

‘The University of the District of Columbia

QOctober 1, 2001, as previously reported  § 71,730
Net change due to adoption of GASB 34 (380)

October 1, 2001, as Restated $ 71,350

In connection with the adoption of GASB 34, the District
hired a consultant to perform an inventory of its capifal
asscts as of Qctober 1, 2001. The study resulted in an
adjustment to previously reported net capital asset
balances of § (95,009).
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A, CASH

The District of Columbia follows the practice of pooling
cash and cash equivalents for some of its governmental
funds and component units in order to provide better
physical custody and control of cash, to enhance
operating  cfficiency and to maximize investment
opportunities. Of $1,020,814 within the custody of the
District, in accordance with District policies, substantially
all deposits as of September 30, 2002 were insured or
collateralized with securities heid by the District or by its
agent in the District’s name. At September 30, 2002, the
carrying amount of cash for the primary government was
$1,392,007 and the bank balance was $1,185,641. The
carrying amount of cash (deposits) for the component
units was $228,807 and the bank balance was $230,158.

B. INVESTMENTS

Investments held by the District at September 30, 2002
have been categorized according to the level of custodial
credit risk associated with its custodial arrangements at
the end of the period.

Custodial Credit Risk Categorization

Custodial credit risk refers to the risk that the District may
not be able to obtain possession of its investments 1 the
event of defanlt by a counterparty. The three types of
custedial credit risk arc:

s Category |, which includes investments that are
insured or registered or for which securities are held
by the District or its agent in the District's name;

e Category 2, which includes uninsured and
unregistered investments for which securities are held
by the counterparty’s trust department or agent in the
District's name; and

s Category 3, which includes uninsurcd and
unregistcred investments for which securities are held
by the counter party, or by its trust depariment or
agent, but not in the District's name.

Investments not evidenced by securities that exist in
physical or book entry form are not categorized.
Investrents by type and category at Septcmber 30, 2002
are shown in Table 2a.

Dertvative Financial Instruments

In accordance with the policies of the Retirement Board
and pursuant to D. C. Code Secction 1-741(a)(2¥C},
durmg 2002, the Pension Trust TFunds held certain
derivative investments to increase potential carnings or to
hedge against potential losses. Derivative investments are
defined as financial instruments, the values of which
depend on or are derived from the value of an underlying
asset, refercnce rate, or index. Derivative investments
often contain exposure to market risk resulting from
tluctuations in interest and currency exchange rates or
changes in the price or principal value of a secunity. The
investment credit risk results from the creditworthiness of
the counterpartics to the confracts and, for asset backed
securitics and collateralized mortgage obligations, the
creditworthiness of the related consumers and mortgages.
The Retirement Board maintains that all contracts are
legally permissible in accordance with its policy.

For 2002, dcrivative mvestments included foreign
currency forward contracts, morfgage-backed security
pools, collateralized morigage obligations, asset backed
securitics and floating rate notes, interest only treasury
securities, bond options and fufures, and equity index
futures.

These derivative investments are included in the Category
1 mvestmentis shown in Table 2a.

At September 30, 2002, the Housing Finance Agency
{HFA) held $296,750 in Government National Mortgage
Association (GNMA) certificates, which are classified as
mortgage-backed securities and included as category 2 in
Table 2a.
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Table 2a — Investments by Type and Category

Category Total
1 2 3 Carrying Value
Primary Government:
[nvestments:
L. 8. government securitics $§ 50253 s 19 3% - b 90,272
Corporate sceurifies 5,000 12444 - 17,444
Pension trust funds investments:
Equity securities (net of securities transaction
payable of 5450,700) 519,373 - - 519,373
Fixed incorme securitics 850,856 - - 850,856
1,405,482 12,463 - 1,477 945

Mot Catcgorized:
Mutual funds - - - 502,215
Pension trust funds investments:

Equity securilies - - - 36,021
Fixed income sceuritics - - - 90,542
Securitics lending collective investment poot - - - 134,534

Total investments {excluding certifcates
of deposit (primary government)) - - - 2,241,257

Component Units:

U. §. government sccuritics 6{),885 320,545 17438 308,868
Repurchase agreements 33,261 - - 33,261
Corporate securities 35,765 291,017 34 327410
Investment contracts - - - 194,254
$ 129911 612,162 17,472 953,799

Mutual funds 077
Total investmenis {component units} 954,476
Tetal reporting entity 3 3,195,733

60 A H A District of Columbia



{Dollars in Thousands)

Notes to the Financial Statements

NOTE 2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Table 2b — Reconciliation of the District’s deposit and investmenl balances

Total investments per Table Za
Total deposits
Total

Cush and cash cquivalents
Investments
(Cash and cash equivalents (restricted)
Investments (restricted)

Total

The Pension Trust Funds used asset backed securities
{ABS), collateralized mortgage obligations (CMOs,)
mortgage-backed pools and securities, floating rate notes,
structured notes, stripped/zero coupon bonds, and forward
mortgage backed security contracts {TBAs) primarily to
increase potential returns. ABS and mertgage-backed
poels and sccurities offer higher potential yields than
comparable duration U. 8. Treasury Netes with higher
credit and market risks. CMO’s also offer higher
potential yields than comparable duration U. S. Treasury
Notes, with higher market risks, although the market risks
may be higher or lower than comparable mortgage-
backed pools. Market risk for asset backed and mortgage
backed pools and securities is managed by monitoring the
duration of the investments. Credit risk is managed by
monitering credit ratings, the underlying collateral for
cach security and any related guarantee.

The Pension Trust Funds invest in structured notes with
step-up coupons that offer lugher yiclds than comparable
U. 8. Treasury

3 3,195,733
1,620,814
$ 4,816,547
Exhibit 1-a Exhibit 4-a Total
$ 241,854 § - 5 241,854
567,871 - 567,871
947 982 430,978 1,378,960
996,535 1,631,327 2,627 862
§ 2754242 F 2062305 % 4,816,547

Notes in exchange for higher market and/or credit risks.
Securities with step-up coupons pay interest according to
a pre-set series of interest rates, which start at one rate and
then step-up to higher rates on specific dates. The Funds
also contain stripped/zero coupon bends, which are
purchased at & discount and do not pay an interest rate.

The Pension Trust Funds also held derivative investmenis
indirectly by participating in pooled, commingled, mutual
or short-term funds that hold derivatives. Information
regarding any risks asseociated with these holdings is not
generally available,

At September 30, 2002, the Pension Trust Funds’
portfolio included $634,269 of derivative mnvestments, or
324% of the pension investment portfolic. The
proportion of derivative Investments varied at times
throughout the year. Further information regarding
balances throughout the year is not available.

Derivative investments by type at Scptember 30, 2002 are
shown in Table 3.

Table 3 — Derivative Investmenis by Type

Investment Instrument Tvpe

Mortgage backed securities

Collateralized mortgage obligations

Asset backed securities

Structured notes (including stripped securities)
Stock performance index futures fund

Floating rate notes
Inflation index bonds

Foreign currency futures/forward contracts, net

Options

Total derivatives

3 445,003
52,578

13,728

55,969

67,660

5,402

4,795

{7,798)

(3,068)

E 634,269
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C. SECURITIES LENDING

During FY 2002, the master custodian, at the direction of
the Retirement Board, lent the Pension Trust Funds®
equity securities and recewved collateral in the form of
cash (United States and foreign currency), sccurilics
issucd or guaranteed by the United States government, the
sovereign debt of Organization of Economic Cooperation
and Development countries and irrevocable letters of
credit by a bank insured by the FDIC. The collateral
could not be pledged or sold unless the borrower
defaulted on the loan. Bomowers delivered collateral [or
each loan cqual to {1} at least 102% of the market value of
the loaned securities il these securities were sovereign
debt issued by a foreign government denominated in U. 8,
dollars or their primary trading market was located in the
United States; or {ii} 105% of the market value of the
loaned sccurities in the case of loaned securities not
denominated in United States dollars or whose primary
trading market was not located in the United States.

The Retirement Board and the borrowers maintained the
right to terminate all sccurities lending transactions on
demand.

The cash collateral received on each loan was invested,
together with the cash collateral of other qualified tax-
exempt plan lenders, in a collective investment pool. At
September 30, 2002, the investment pool had an average
duration of 61 days and an average weighted maturity of
153 days. Because the loans were terminable at will, their
duration did not generally match the duratton of the
investments made with cash collateral.

During FY 2002, the Retirement Board did not restrict the
amount of leans that the master custodian made on its
behalf. No failure to return loaned securities or to pay
distributions occurred during the year, and no losses were
mcurred from a dcfault of a bomower or the master
custodian. The Funds had no credit nisk exposure to
borrowers as of year-end. As of September 30, 2002, the
collateral held and the market value of securities on loan
were $152,402 and $147,142 respectively. The collateral
held is included in cash and investments shown in Exhibit
4-a and the labilities associated with the securities
lending transactions are reported in Exhibit 4-a, at their
carrying amounts, which are less than their market values.

At the closc of 2002, gross eamings from securilies
lending transactions totaled $4,614. The income (net of
amortization and accretion), the nel realized/unrealized

gain attributable to discount and premium, and the net
increase In net assets resulting from operations totaled
$£2.645, $478 and $3,123, respectively. The Pension Trist
Funds® share of the net eamings on sccurities lending
transactions totaled $499 in 2002,
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statemenis

NOTE 3. RESTRICTED ASSETS

At September 30, 2002, restricled assets of the primary government and its component units totaled 33,901,800 as

summarized m Table 4.

Table 4 — Summary of Restricted Assets

Governmental Funds/Governmental Activities

General Capital

General Improvements Non-Mijor Total
Bond Escrow Accounts 198,700 - - 198,700
Public Transporiation - 84,142 - 84,142
Emergency Cash/Debt
Service Reserves 248,731 - 60,858 315,589
Total 447431 84,142 606,858 598431

Proprietary Funds/Business-type Activities
Lottery & Unemployent Component

Games Compensation Total Fiduciary Funds Units
Bond Escrow Accounts - - - - 067,641
Unpaid Prizes 70,158 - 70,158 - -
University Endowment - - - - 8911
Benefits - 298,855 298,855 1,957,283 -
Other - - - - 521
Total 70,158 298,855 369,013 1,957,283 977,073
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements {Dollars in Thousands)

NOTE 4. COMPONENT UNIT AND INTERFUND BALANCES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

A. RECEIVAEBLES AND PAYABLES BETWEEN FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNITS

Due to/duc from and interfund receivable and payable balanees for cach individual fund and component unit at Septernber 30,
2002 are shown in Table 5,

Table 5 — Summary of Due To/Due From ind Interfund Balances

Primary Government/

Component Units Interfund

Fund or Component Unit Receivables Payables Receivables Payables
General $ 177 28,107 292,258 11,443
Federal & Private Resources - - 25,765 -
General Capital Improvements - - 9,950 280,330
Non-major governmenial 11,718 - 11,443 19,740
Uncmpleyment Compensation - - 989 28312
Pension Trust - - 78 611
Agency - - - 87
Water and Sewer Authority 17.948 11,718 - -
Washington Convention Center 4,536 - - -
Sports Commission - 177 - -
University of the District of Columbia 5,023 - - -

Total $ 40,002 40,002 340,523 340,523

The above balances represent the impact of transactions between the funds, which will be settled during fiscal year 2003.
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NOTE 4. COMPONENT UNIT AND INTERFUND BALANCES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES—I

B. INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Table 6 shows a summary of interfund transfers for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002,

Table 6 — Summary of Interfund Transters

TRANSFER FROM TRANSFER TO PURPOSE AMOUNT
(OUT) (IN)
General Fund Highway Trust Funds Motor fuel taxes dedicated to the Highway
Trust Fund $ 27,348
General Fund Highway Trust Funds Operating funds used to finance capital
projects 11,000
Ceneral Fund General Capital Surplus interest from the sale of DCPS
Iimprovement Fund properties held by Control Beard 947
Gengcral Fund Federal and Private Receivable write off between Appropriated
Resources Funds 13,181
General Capital General Fund Charter Schools Revolving Loan
Improvements Fund Enhancement Account transfer 6,848
General Capital General Fund Reprogramming of capital expenditures
Improvements Fund paid from local funds 9,000
Lottery and Games General Fund DC Lottery and Games excess rcvenucs,
after operating cost, to the Gencral Fund 63,000

C. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Taxes and other receivables are valued at their estimated collectible amount. These receivables are presented in various
funds as show in Table 7.

Table 7 - Other Receivables

MNorerajor
Tedorsl & Private Coveral Capital Conermmental T oty Unerrployment Persien Tiust
Cieneral Resources Inproserants R Gl Cenrpenisation Finds
Gruss Fiveivable:
Taas $ BEE
Aocroed Rterest &3 - - - . - -
Acounts SMB68 1728 6375 3203 5033 16,933 2635
Total gross receivable 837439 117,298 6375 3 5003 16933 2638
Less-allowance: for unoofloctibles H6453 - - - 456 Lt -
Total mt roocvable ) 350.986 117,298 6375 3203 4577 16933 2635
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(Dollars in Thousands)

NOTE 5. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital Outlays

Capital outlays totaled $905,418 for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2002, which are reported in the General
Capital Improvements and Other  Nonmajor
Governmental Funds.  As construction progresses, the
cumulative expenditures are capitalized as construction in
progress 1n the Governmental Activities column of the
Government-Wide  Financial — Statements. Upon
completion of the asset, the balance in the Construction in
Progress account is transferred to an appropriate
descriptive capital asset account such as building or
equipment.

Loss On Disposal Of Lorton Correctional Complex

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002, the
District transferred all inmates housed at the Lorton
Correctional Complex in Lorton, Virginia to federal penal
mnstifutions.  The property was transferred to the Fairfax
County Water Authority of Fairfax, Virginia in

accordance with the provisions of Title X1 subtitie C of
the District of Columbia Revitalization for Lorton Closure
and Transfer of Property Act without consideration.
Consequently, the District recognized a loss of $171,094
on the disposal of the property.

Mayor’s Mansion

In February 2001, the Eugene B. Casey Foundation
offered to purchase property located at 180! Foxhall
Road, N.W., and to renovate the existing structares to be
used as the Official Residence of the Mavyor, io be named
the Casey Mansion. This uncxpected offer will provide
the District a mayoral residence, simlar to that provided
by each of the 50 U.S. States, many major TLS. cities and
also to the mayors of many other world capital cities. This
potential donation has not yet been recorded in thesc basic
financial statements.

A. GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES CAPITAL ASSETS BY CLASS

Table 8 presents the changes in the governmental activities capitfal assets by category for the primary government:

Table 8 - Changes in the Governmental Activities Capital Assets by Asset Class

Balance CIP Balance
October 1, Transfers/ Transfers September 30,
Asset Class 2001 (Restated) Additions  Dispositions _ in (ouf) 2002

Non Depreciable
Land 8 216,721 - (34) 2,380 219,076
Construction in progress (CEP) 698,003 675,254 - {366,915} 1,006,432
Tetal non-depreciable 914,814 675,254 (34} {364,526) 1,225,508
Depreciable

Infrastructure 2,214.924 - - 156,964 2,371,888

Buildings 2,214,919 - {250,522) 145,245 2,109,642

Equipment 328,348 31,261 {1,873) 62,317 420,053
Total depreciable 4,758,191 31,261 (252,395) 264,526 4,901,583
Less-accumulated depreciation (2,150,743) {155,288) 79,757 - (2,226,274)
Total depreciable, net 2,607,448 {124,027) (172,638) 364,526 2,675,309
Net governmental activities capital $ 3,522,262 551,227 (172,672) - 3,900,817
assets
Local source 3,219,014 274,609 (172,672) - 3,320,951
Intergovernmental 313,248 276,618 - - 579,866
Total resources invested s 3,522,262 551,227 (172,672) - 3,900,817
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NOTE 5, CAPITAL ASSETS

B. GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES CAPITAL ASSETS BY FUNCTION

Table 9 presents the changes in the governmental activities capital assets by function for the primary government:

Table 9- Governmenial Activities Capital Assets by Function

Balance 1P Balance
October 1, Fransfers/ Transfers/ Transfers September 30,
Function 2001 {restatcd) Additions  Dispositions in {ouf) 2002
Governmental direction and support i) 182,309 2,097 (537) 53,365 237,234
Econome development and regulation 82,475 2,157 - 3,178 87810
Public safety and justice 759.071 5,243 (251,892) 15,859 528,281
Public education systcim 697431 7,182 - 115,617 820,230
Human support services 56141 1,818 - 10,037 573,266
Public works 2692215 12,764 - 168,850 2,873,538
Construction in progress (CIP) 698,093 675254 - (366,915 1,006,432
Total $ 5,673,008 706,515 (252429} - 6,127,091

C. GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES CAPITAL ASSETS ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION BY FUNCTION

A summary of changes in governmental activities capital assets depreciation by function for the primary government is
shown in Table 16. )

Table 10 — Governmental Activities Capital Assets Accumulated Depreciation By Function

Balance
October 1, Balance
2001 Transfers/ September 30,
Function (restated) Additions Dispositions 2002

Government direction and support 3 30,494 30,495 - 60,989
Econormic development and regulation 16,543 2,341 - 18,8%4
Public safely and justice 253,041 26,765 {(79,757) 200,049
Public education system 385,808 15,637 - 401,445
Human support services 239,084 0,648 - 248,732
Public works 1,225,773 70.402 - 1,296,175
Total $ 2,150,743 155288 (79.757) 2.226.274
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NOTE 5. CAPITAL ASSETS

D. BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES CAPITAL ASSETS

Business-Type Activities Capital Assets are presented in Table 11.

Table 11 —Business-Type Activities Capital Assets

Balance Balance
October 1, Transfers/ September 30,
Asset Class 2001 Additions Dispositions 2002
Lottery:

Equipment b 3612 358 (245} 3.725
Total 3,612 358 (245) 3,725
Less-accumulated depreciation (2.284) {191} 245 {2.2301
Net capital assets 8 1,328 167 1.495

E. DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS CAPITAL ASSE'TS

A summary of capital assets by class for the discretely presented component units is shown in Table 12 and 13.

Table 12 - Capital Assets by Class for the Discretely Presented Component Units

Balance CIP Balance
October 1, Fransfers/ Transfers Scptember 30,
Asset Class 2001 Additions Dispositions in (out) 2002

Land $ 11,939 193 - - 12,132
Utility plant 1,644,464 - - 162,004 1,506,468
Buildings 143,232 8,418 - - 151,650
Equipment 116,243 3,200 (10,726) 8,756 117473
Construction in progress 581.961 379.192 - (170.760) 790,393
Total 2,497,839 391,003 (10,726) - 2,878,116
Less-accumulated depreciation 085.218 42,959 {8.820) - 719.357
Net capital assets $ 1,812,621 348.044 {1.906) - 2,158.759
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NOTE 5. CAPITAL ASSETS -

Table 13— Capital Assets by Component Unit

Balance Balance
October 1, Transfers/ September 30,
Component Unit 2001 Additions Dispositions 2002
University of the District of
Columbia 3 149,825 4,780 {10,139 144 466
Washington Convention Center 402,195 230,941 {19 633,117
Water and Sewer Authority 1,906,150 148,993 (568) 2,054,575
Sports and Lintertainment
Commission 35,204 6,000 - 41,204
Housing Finance Agency 4,465 289 - 4,754
Total 52,497,839 391,003 (10,726) 2,878,116
Less-accumulated depreciation (685,218) {42,959) 8,820 (719357}
Net component unit capital
assets $  1,812,62) 348,044 (1,906) 2,158,759
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NOTE 5. CAPITAL ASSETS

F. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Construction in progress by function for governmental activities capital assets is shown in Table 14,

Table 14 — Construction In Progress by Function

Expenditures
Number of Author- Prior Cuarrent Unexpended
Function and Subfunction Projects izations Yeats Year Total Balance

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Governmental Dircetion and Support:

Finance 3 S 115024 5 73134 § 20646 5 104,780 § 11,144
Personnel i 4,184 1,385 2 995 4,384 -
Legislative | [LGH} L 600 - 1,600 -
Flections i 145 145 - 145 -
Administrative 12 205,225 61,090 02,344 123440 141 785
Total 15 387.27% 139,360 PR 234 345 152 920
Putblic Safety and Justice:
Bolice k] L1652 4.t14 8735 12,869 67,293
Fire | 4563 320 342 662 4,200
Comection 4 35,009 1,506 0,004 7,700 27,300
Emcracncy Preparedness - - - - - -
Judicial - - - - - -
Total 10 1244034 {1,130} 13,101 2123 98,803
Public Fducation System:
Public School System 39 559093 134,341 80,209 214,550 344,543
Human Support Services:
[ealth and welfare 21 176,802 2,6% A4.275 46,971 129,831
IHuntan relations l 10,724 2,116 T34 2,855 7269
Recreation 0 172,413 8,364 0,588 14,952 157,461
Tunal 3] 359,939 13,176 31,602 64,778 205,161
Public Works:
Environmental [ 571,972 245 447 226077 471,524 100,448
Tatal 6] 571,972 245447 226077 471,524 100,448
Totals 159 3 1,998,316 S 53RA54 S 467978 § 1,006,432 % 901 884
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Netes to the Basic Financial Statemenis

NOTE 6. CONDUIT DEBT TRANSACTIONS

INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BOND PROGRAM

The District has issued, under its Industrial Revenue Bond
Program, private activity bonds for which the principal
and interest are payable solely from defined revenues of
private euotities, such as non-profit organizations. The
Disirict has no obhgation for 1his debt beyond resources
that may have been provided by related leases or loans.

Orgamizations participating m the Industnial Revenue
Bond Program are allowed (o borrow at the prevailing
municipal bond rate. These private activily bonds provide
cconomic incentive to construct, modermize or enhance
private entity facilities 1n the District thereby supporting
the District’s economic base. As of September 30, 2002,
the aggregate outstanding principal amount for these
conduit debt obligations was approximately $3.5 billion.

r NOTE 7. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

A. LONG-TERM DEBT

In the govermment-wide financial statements  and
proprictary funds, long-term debt and other long-term
obligations arc reported as habilities mn the applicable
governmental  activities, business-type activities, or
proprictary funds statement of net assets. Bond premiums
and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and
amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective
interest method. Bonds payable arc reported net of the
applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance,
costs arc reported as deferred charges.

Governmmental funds recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the
current period. The face amount of debt issued is
reported as other financing sources. Premiums received
on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources
while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other
financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld
from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as
debt service cxpenditurcs.

Genceral Obligation Bonds

At September 30, 2001, the District had serial and term
general obligation bonds balance of $2,582,018. On
December 5, 2001, the District issued $214,155 in
multimodal general obligation bonds (Series 2001C)
scheduled to mature on June 1, 2026 and 369,715 in
multimodal general obligation refunding bonds {Series
20010 scheduled to mature on June I, 2029. Bond
proceeds were used to (i) fund capital projects totaling
$211,345, (i) defease 363,365 of the District’s
outstanding general obligation bonds, and {iii) pay $3,734
for costs and expenses of issuing and delivering the
bonds.

The advance refunding resulted in a difference between
the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the

old debt of approximately $924. The District completed
the advance refunding to reduce its total debt service
payment over the next 20 years by approximately $5,000
and to obtain an economic gain of approximately $3,100.

The Series 2001C and 2001D bonds were issued as
variable rate demand obligations. These bonds will bear
interest from their date of issue at a variable ratc unless
converted to a fixed interest rate, ARS ratc or flexible rate
in accordance with the indenture. The Series 2001C and
2001D bonds have an interest rate swap agreement
associated with them, as described in Wote 14. The
effective interest rates for the 2001C and 2001D bonds
were 4.09% and 4.08%, respectively.

Prior to the creation of the Water and Sewer Authority as
an independent entity, the District issued general
obligation bonds to fund improvements to the water and
wastewater system. The Water and Sewer Authority is
responsible for this debt. While the Water and Sewer
Authority is not directly liable for the general obligation
bonds, it is required by enabling legislation to transfer to
the District the funds necessary to pay its portion of the
debt service on these bonds. Accordingly, a portion of
these bonds totaling $79,070 is reflected in the financial
statements of the Water and Sewer Authority.

The remainder of the general obligation bonds were
authorized and issued primarily to provide funds for
certain other capital projects and improvements, They are
backed by the full faith and credit of the District. In
addition, the bonds are secured by a security interest in
and lien on the funds derived from a Special Real
Property Tax levied annually by the District on portions
of certain real property. These tax revenues have been
dedicated for payment of bond principal and interest.
Amounts collected are deposited in banks and held in
escrow for payment of bond principal and interest when
due. A summary of the outstanding debt issues at
September 30, 2002 is shown in Table 16.
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NOTE 7 LONG - TERM LIABILITIES

TIF Notes and Bonds

The Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Netes and Bonds are
special limited obliganons of the District. In 2001, the
District promised to pay an aggregate principal amount of
$6,900 to a Development Sponsor. The sole source of
repayment of the TIFs shall be the incremental revenues
from the Project, and the District shall have no obligation
to make any payments on the TIF Note, other than
through the remuttance to the Paying Agent. If the
incremental revenues are msufficient o pay the principal
and interest duc on the TIFs when due, such payment
shortfall shall not constitute a default under the TIFs. If
and when the incremental revenues arc sufficient, the
District shall pay the amount of any shortfall to the
Developrment Sponsor without any penalty interest or
premium thercen.

In 2002, the Dnstrict promised to pay an aggregate
principal amecunt of 373,650 to the Gallery Place
Development Sponsor and $45,995 to the Mandarin Hotel
Development Sponsor.  Two Tax Increment Financing
(TIF) Bonds were issued pursuant to the District of
Columbia Tax Increment Financing Authorizalion Act of
1998, as amended, and the Trust Indenture dated as of
April 1, 2002. Intcrest rates on the Gallery Place and
Mandarin Hotel TIF Bonds range from 4.0% (o 5.5%.

Tobacco Bonds

In November 1998, the District {along with a number of
other States and various jurisdictions} signed a Master
Settlement Agreement with the major U.S. tobacco
companies that ended litigation over health care treatment
costs incurred for smoking-related illnesses. Under the
settlement, the District is scheduled to receive total annnal
payments aggregating an estimated $1.2 billion by 2025.
There are a nmumber of potential adjustments to this
schedule, including an inflation adjustment and a cigarette
volume adjustment. In addition, there are numerous risks
regarding whether the District will receive the full amount
to which it is entitled under the terms of the Master
Settlement Agreement, including various lawsuits outside
the District alleging that the Master Settlement
Agreement is void or voidable.

In 2001, the Tobacco Corporation issued $521,105
aggregate principal amount of its Tobacce Sefitlement
Asset-Backed Bonds, Series 2001, of which $514,280 was
outstanding as of September 30, 2002. The payment of
those bonds was secured by the distribution under the
Master Setilement Agreement. Payments received by the

Tobacco Corporation under the Master Settlement
Agreement in excess of the annuai debt service
requircments for the Tobacco Bonds revert to the General

Fund. A total of $9,750 was returned to the General Fund
during the fiscal ycar 2002. The Tobacco Bonds are
neither general nor moral obligations ef the District and
are not secured by a pledge of (he full faith and credit of
the District.

Qualified Zone Academy Bond

The District issned the Qualificd Zone Academy Bond
(Q/AB) as a taxablc general obligation bond without
incurring interest expense.  The Distnict received $4,665
and is obligated to deposit a total amount of $3,582 into a
sinking fund in fourteen equal amounts of $255 beginning
December [, 2002,
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| NOTE 7. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Table 16 - Changes in Governmental Activities Long-Term Debt of Primary Government

General
Obligation T 1K Tobuacco
Bonds Notes Bonds Bonds Q7AB Total

Debt payable af October 1, 2001 S 2,582,018 6,900 - 521,105 - 3,110,023
Bongd and note proceeds: -

Series 2001AC 214,155 - - - - 214,155

Series 20010 69,715 - - - - 69,715

Gallery Place Project - - 73,650 - - 73,650

Mandarin Cricntal Hotel Project - - 45,995 - - 43,995

Q7ZAB - - - - 3,582 3,582

Total $ 2,865,888 6,900 119,645 521,105 3,582 3,517,120
Debt payments:

Principal matured 131,750 - - 0,825 - 138,575

Principal defeased 63,505 - - - - 03,565

Other - - - - - -
Deht payable September 30, 2602 $ 2,670,573 0,900 116,645 514,280 3,582 3,314,980

A summary of debt service requirements for general long-term debt to maturity for these bonds is shown in Fable 17

Table 17 - Summary of Debt Service Requirements for General Long-Term Debt to Maturity

General Obligation Tobacco Bonds
Year Ending September 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Total

2003 3 144,135 139,979 7,730 33,195 325,039
2004 149,975 133,285 3,810 32,712 319,782
2005 157,640 124,821 4,000 32,473 318,934
2000 165,470 116,591 4,720 32,223 319,004
2007 171,723 108,043 5,215 31,928 316,909
2008 - 2012 859,003 411,593 72,100 150,199 1,492,895
2013 - 2017 367,505 251,580 99,055 125,262 843 402
2018 - 2022 273,900 141,559 139,180 88,789 643,428
2023 -2027 312,120 63,091 178,470 34,816 588,497
2028 - 2033 69,102 0,394 - - 75,496

Total $ 2670573 1,496,936 514,280 561,597 5,243,386

Due to the uncertainty of the future tax increment receipts, future payments on TIF notes and bonds are not included in the
summary of debt service requirements.
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B NOTE 7 LONG — TERM LIABILITIES

Defeased Bonds

In prior years, the District has defeased certam bond
issues by issuing refunding bonds. As of September 30,

2002, the total amount of defeased debt outstanding but
removed from the government-wide financial statcment
was $683,624. The amount defeased during the ycar
ended September 30, 2002 is presented in Table 18.

Table 18 — Summary of Defeased Bonds in Fiscal Year 2002

Defeased by Bond 2002D:

Bond Series Interest Rate (%) Amount
1999A Serial 5.375-5.625 s 15,225
1999A Term 5.500 33,120
19998 Serial 5.500 15,220

TOTAL: b 63,563

COMPONENT UNITS
Water and Sewer Authority

The Water and Sewer Authority derives its funding for
future capital projects from the issuance of revenue
bonds, notes payable to the federal government and
various other non-debt sources of financing. The public
utility revenue bonds and notes payable to the federal
government for the Washinglon Aqueduct are considered
senior debt. Notes payable to the federal government for
the Washington Aqucduct are specifically secured by user
charges assessed on retail customers. During the year
ended September 30, 2002, the highest rate on these notes
was 6.75% and thc lowest rate was 4.35%. Debt
outstanding at September 30, 2002 totahng $376,8406
included net unamortized premiums of $5,998 and a

remaining principal balance of $370,848.
Commercial Paper Note Payable

At the end of FY 2002, the Authority had issucd $90
million in commercial paper, with interest rates ranging
from 1.40 to 1.65 percent.  All maturitics were less than
270 days, as stipulated in the Board resolution authorizing
the program. The remaining $10 mallion authorized under
this program was issucd early in FY 2003. This amount is
included in the Combining Statements of Net Assets
{Exhibit 5-a).

A summary of Water and Sewer Authority’s debt scrvice
requirements to maturity for principal and interest is
shown in Table 19.

Table 19 — Water and Sewer Authority Debt Service Requirements to Maturity

Year Ending September 30 Principal Interest Total
2003 21,828 19.834 41,662
2004 14719 19,082 33,801
2005 16,134 18,274 34,408
2006 13,385 17,400 30,794
2007 16,023 16,685 32,708
2008 - 2012 66,602 71,289 137,981
2013 - 2017 67,762 533,169 120,931
2018 - 2022 88,9499 31,856 120,855
2023 - 2027 49,805 10,043 59,848
2028 - 2032 10,353 1,513 11.866
2033 - 2037 2,076 669 3,345
2038 - 2042 2472 204 2,676
Total 370,848 260,027 630,875
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r NOTE 7. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Washington Convention Center

On September 29, 1998, the Washington Convention
Center issued 8524 million in senior lien dedicated tax
revenue serial and term bonds at various rates and
maturitics.

The bond proceceds are being used to construct and cquip
the new convcation center. The 1998 bonds are special
obligations of thc Washington Convention Center. The
1998 Bonds arc payablc solely from dedicated tax receipts
and pledged [unds established under the Trust Agreement.

The Washington Convention Center Authority (WCCA)
Act authorized the pledge of the dedicated taxes to sccure
the repayment of the 1998 bonds. Pursuant to the WCCA
Act, the District has also pledged not to limit or alter any
rights vested in the Washinglon Convention Center to
fulfill agreements made with hoiders of the 1998 Bonds,
or in any way impair rights and remedies of bondholders
until the 1998 bonds and the interest thergon are paid in
[ull.

A summary of Washington Convention Center’s debt
service requirements to maturity for principal and interest
is shown in Table 2.

Table 20 — Washington Convention Center Debt Service Requirements to Maturity

Year Ending September 30 Principal Interest Total
2003 - 25,932 23,952
2004 10,225 25,9532 36,177
20H)3 10,685 25,491 36,176
2000 L1,t90 24,984 36,174
2007 11,720 24,452 36,172
2008 - 2012 68,220 112,654 180,874
2013 - 2017 88,065 92,803 180,568
2018 - 2022 F13,125 67,743 180,868
2023 - 2027 143,725 37,147 180872
2028 - 2029 67,505 4,847 72.352

324 400 442,025 960,485
Less: IMscount (6,064) - {6,004}
Taotal 518,396 442,025 960,42t

Housing Finance Agency

Bonds payable consists of term and serial bonds which
arc subject to redemption at the option of the Housing
Finance Agency in accordance with the terms of the
respective bond indenture and bond resolution, in whole
or in part, on various dates at prescribed redemption
prices. Included in certain bond issues are capital
appreciation bonds. The principal amount of these bonds
appreciates  either  anmually or  semi-annually,
compounding on the original principal balance. These
bonds arc recorded in the financial statements at their
current appreciated amounts.

Bonds have been issued to provide financing for the

Housing Finance Agency's housing programs and are
collateralized by: {(a) mortgage loans made on the related
developments or single-family residential mortgage loans
purchased, (b) substantially all revenues, mortgage
payments, and recovery payments received by the agency
from mortgage loans made on related developments or (¢}
certain accounts, generally debt service reserve funds,
established pursvant to the indenture authorizing issuance
of the bonds.

A summary of Housing Finance Agency’s debt service
requirements te maturity for principal and interest is
shown in Table 21.
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‘Fable 21 - Housing Finance Agency Debt Service Requirements to Maturity

Year Ending September 30 Principal Interest ‘fotal
2003 s 14,405 44,268 58,673
2004 13,245 43 485 56,730
2005 4,800 42902 47,792
2006 2,310 42,772 45,082
2007 2,780 42,636 45,436
2008-2012 36,544 208,273 244 817
20132017 15,617 199,128 214,745
2018-2022 64,285 187,728 252,013
2023-2027 169,025 154,555 323,380
2028-20032 187,706 101,768 289,474
2033-2037 281,454 45,063 326,517
2038-2042 63,605 24,095 87,760
2043-2047 47,394 2,943 50,337
Subtotal 903,320 1,139,636 2,042,956
Unamortized Bond Premium, net 3,979 - 3,979

Total 5 907,299 1,139,636 2,046,935

B. OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

A summary of changes in other long-term liabilitics for governmental activities is shown in Table 22.

Table 22 - Changes in Other Long-Term Liabilities

Balance Balance
QOctober 1, September 30,
Account 2001 Additions  Deductions 2002
Governmental Activities:
Accrued disability compensation (Note 13) 5 200,531 64,179 32,827 231,883
Accumulated annual leave 85,716 10,292 - 66,008
Accreted intercst 14,298 2,572 - 16,870
Capital leases payable (Note 12) 121,564 51,944 16,451 157,057
Total $ 422,109 128,987 49,278 501,818
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C. CURRENT PORTION OF LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Table 23 presents the current portions of long-term liabilities.

T'able 23 — Current Portion of Long-Term Liabilities

Current Long-Term

‘Type of Liability Portion Portion Total

Principal Principal Principal
General Obligation Bonds ) 144,135 2,520,438 2,670,573
TTIF Bonds and Notes 364 126,181 126,545
Q/AB 255 3327 3,582
Capital Leases 22,246 134,811 157,057
Tobacco Bonds 7,730 506,550 514,280
Annual leave 59,869 36,139 96,008
Tuture benefits 27,959 203,924 231,883
Accreted interest - 16,870 16370
Grant disallowances - 56,940 56,940
(lains and judgrments 5,000 23,809 28,069
Total Governnental Funds $ 267,558 3,635,149 3,902,707

NOTE 8. RETIREMENT PROGRAMS

A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS

District full-time employees receive pension benefits
either through the federally administered Civil Service
Retirement System or the District’s Retirement Programs
and the Social Sccurity Systent.

Plan Descriptions

Civil Service Refirement and Social Security Systems
The Civil Service Retirement System (5 U.S.C. 8331), &
cost sharing multiple employer public employce
retirement system, covers permanent full-time employees

hired before October 1, 1987 (except those covered by the
District Retirement Program).

The Balanced Budget Act of 1997 (P. L. 105-33)

mandated an increase in the District’s confribution [or
most Civil Service covered employecs from 7% 1o 8.51%
(9.01% for law enforcement officers and firefighters.)
This increase became effective for the first pay period
ended on or after October 1, 1997. The contribution rate
will revert to 7.5% in October 2002, and then back to 7%
in January 2003. The employee contribution rate for Civil
Service covered employees changed to 7.0% on January
2001.

District contributtons to the pension plans administered
by the federal government, for the years ended September
30, 2002, 2001, and 2000 were as shown in Table 24,
These financial statements are available from the U.S.
Office of Personmel Management at www.opm.gov.
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Table 24 - Summary of District Contributions to Federally Administered Pension Plans

Plan Rate Emplovees 2002 2001 2000
Civil Service 8.51% 7,124 25,855 27,309 29,027
Social Security 7.65% 11,434 51,338 48,307 34571

Fotal 17,193 75,616 63,598
Total Payrell 1,585,193 1198182 1,606,136

The District has no {urther liability to the plans.

District Refirement Programs

The Retirement Board administers  the  District’s
Retirement Programs {D.C. Code 4-601, 11-1561, 31-
1200, which are single employer defined benefit pension
plans, one established for police and firefighters and the
ether for teachers.

Each of the two plans provides retirement, death and
disability benefits, and annual cost of living adjustments
to plan members and beneficiaries. Each pension trust
fund issues a publicly available financial report that
includes financial statements and required supplementary
information. These reports can be obtamed from the
District of Columbia Retirement Board, Executive
Director, 1400 L Street, N. W., Suite 300, Washington,
D. C. 20005,

Funding Policy

The Retirement Board establishes, for cach pension trust
fund, the contribution requircments of plan members and
the District government. The Retirement Board, when
deemcd necessary, may amend these requirements. A
summary of the actuarial assumptions is shown in Table
25.

Members contribute by salary deductions on the basis of a
normal rate of contributions, which is assigned by the
Fund at membership. Members contribute 7% (or 8% for
tcachers hired on or after November 16, 1996} of annual
pay munus any pay received for summer school.
Members may also contribute up to 10% of annual pay
toward an annuity in addition to any vested pension.

The District is required to contribute the remaining
amounts necessary to finance the coverage of its
cmployees through periodic contributions at actuarially
determined amounts in accordance with the provisions of
the Replacement Act. The District contributions for fiscal

year 2002, 20001 and 2000 were cqual to the Fund’s
independent actuary’s reccommendation.

Under P. L. 105-33, the federal government makes annual
contributions to the Police and Firefighters® Plan and to
the Teachers” plan on behalf of District cmployees and
retirecs. These on-behalf payments totaled $251,700 for
the year ended September 30, 2002 and have been
reporfed  as  intergovernmental revenue. Related
expenditures of $198,843 and $52,857 have been reported
in the public safety and justicc and the pubhce education
systems functions, respectivcly.
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Table 25 - Actuarial Assumptions

Iolice and

Fire Teachers
Coatribution rates plan members T% - 8% 7% - 8%
Actuarial valuation date 10/01/00 10/01/00
Actuarial cost method Aggregate Aggregate

Asset valuation method

Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of relum
Projected salary increases
Inflation rate
Cost of living adjustments

Market valuc | Market value

7.25% 7.25%
55%-8.8% | 53%-8.8%
5% 5%

5% 5%

*Fhe aggregate actuarial cost method does not identify or separately amortize unfunded actuarial liabilitics.

Actuariatly Requived Contributions

The District made its actuarially required contribution of
$74.6 million to the Police and Fircfighters’ Plan during
the year ended September 30, 2002.

B. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PENSION PLANS
District of Columbia

Under the provisions of D. C. Code 1-627, the District
sponsors a defined contribution pension plan with a
qualified trust under Internal Revenue Code section
401{a) for permanent full-time cmployees covered under
the Social Security System. Employees do not contribute
to the plan and are eligible to participate after one year of
service. The District contributes 5% of base salaries for
eligible employees each pay period. This contribution
ratc is 5.5% of base salaries for detention officers.
Contributions and earnings vest fully after four years of
service  following a  one-year  waiting  period.
Contributions and earnings are forfeited if separation
occurs before five years of credited service. These
contributions are not considered assets of the Dhstrict, and
the District has no further liability to this plan. For the
fiscal wvear ended September 30, 2002, District
contributiens to the plan were $19,135.  This plan also
covers employees of the Sports Commission and Water
and Sewer Authority, while the employees of the Housing
Finance Agency and Washington Convention Center are
covered under their own separate defined contribution
plans. Payments to the HFA and Convention Center
Plans were $124 and 3555, respectively.

University of the District of Columbia Compegnent
Unit

The University sponsors a contributory pension and
retitement plan administered by the Teachers Insurance
and Annuity Association/College Retirement Equities
Fund (TTAA/CREF.) Eligible empleyees are those on the
faculty and administrative staff of the University. The
employees have the option to centributc a minimum of
5% of basc salaries. The University contributes a
percentage of each employee’s base salary as follows:
15% for general faculty, 7% for law school faculty, and
7% for administrative staff. University contributions to
the plan in fiscal year 2002 were $3,183. Generally,
cmployees are fully vested in both their contributions and
in those of the University.

C. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS
Internal Revenue Code Section 403 Plan

The District spensors an annuity purchase plan (D. C.
Code 31-1252) with insurance companies and other
1ssuers in accerdance with IRC Section 403 for public
teachers covered by the District Retirement Program. The
Disirict does not contribute te this plan and has no
Hability to the plan. Under this annuity purchase plan,
eligible employees were able to defer up to 511,000 of
their annual compensation for calendar year 2002.
Employees with more than fifteen years of service may
defer up to $13,000 for the calendar year 2002. Also an
additional deferral of $1,000 was available to participants
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who were at least 30 years old before the end of the
calendar year. Contributions vest immediately and arc
not assels of the Ihstrict.

Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Plan

The District offers its employees a deferred compensation
plan {D. C. Code 47-3601) created in accordance with
[ntermal Revenue Code Section 457. Employees,
including teachers, were able to defer the lesser of

$11,000 or 100% of includible compensation in calendar
year 2002,  Also an additional deferral of $1,000 was
available to participants who were at least 50 years old
before the end of the calendar year. Compensation
deferred and mmcome eamed are taxable when paid or
made availuble 1o the participant or beneliciary upon
retiremnent, death, termination, or  unforeseecable
emergency. Contributions are not assets of the District,
which has no further liability to the plan.

NOTE 9. FUND BALANCE RESERVATIONS

Reserved and designated fund balances at Septemiber 30, 2002 are shown in Table 26.

Table 26 - Schedule of FY 2002 Reserved and Designated Fund Balances

Federal & General Nonmajor  Unemployment Pension
General Private Capital Governmental  Compensation Trust
Fund  Resources Improvements Funds Fund Fund
Reserved
Debt scrvice — bond
esCrow $ 198,700 - 78,577 - - -
Emergency and
contingency cash
reserve fund 248,731 - - - - -
Budget 45,063 - - - - -
Leng-tenm assets 16,092 - 1,736 - - -
Inventory 9,891 2,263 - - - -
Purpose resirictions 16,937 233,536 2,462 - - -
Charter schoo! loan fund 10,000 - - - -
Tobacco settlement - - - 57,137 - -
Future benefits - - - - 271,361 1,816,943
Highway projects - - _ - 65.985 - -
Total Reserved Fund $ 3545414 235,799 82,778 123,122 271.361 1.816.943
Balances
Unreserved
Designated:
Post employment
benefits § 22408 - - - - -
Grant disallowances 56,940
Other purpose
restrictions 125,239
Undesignated 115,327 - (472 305 31.751 - -
Total Unreserved Fund
Balances $ 319914 - (472,305) 31.751 - -
Total Fund Balances $ £65.328 235,799 (389.530) 154,873 271.36]  1.816.943

The gencrat capital improvements fund has a negative fund balance of ${389,530) at September 30, 2002, which will be
eliminated by additional operating transfers from the general fund during fiscal year 2003.
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Washington Metropolitan Area Transit Authority

The Washington Metropolitan Area Transit Authority
{WMATA} was created by Interstate Compact by and
between Maryland, Virginia and the District of Columbia,
purssant to Public Law 8§9-774. The District’s
commitment or obligation to provide financial assistancc
to WMATA is established by annual appropriations, as
approved by Congress. The District supports the Transit
Authority through operating and capital grants. The
Dustrict places the amounts to be provided to WMATA in
an escrow account until such time when the funds are

drawn down for use by WMATA. Operating grants may
be in the form of operaing and interest subsidics.
WMATA records the District’s operating  granis  as
advanced  contributions  when  reccived and  as
nonoperating revenues when the related cxpenses are
incurred.  WMATA recognizes the District’s capital
erants as additions 1o construction in progress and
investment in capital assets when the grant resources are
expended [or capital acquisitions. A summary of the
grants previded to WMATA during the vyear ended
September 30, 2002 is shown in Table 27.

Table 27 - Summary of Grants Provided to WMATA

Account Amount
Operating grants $ 141,012
Debt service grants 10,331
Capital grants {less escrow balance) 36,390

Total § 187,733

The WMATA issues separate audited financial statements that can be requested from the Washington Meiropolitan Area
Transit Authority, General Manager, 600 5" Street, NW, Washington, D. C. 20001.

NOTE 11. TRANSACTIONS WITH THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT

A FEDERAL CONTRIBUTION

In accordance with the National Capital Revitalization
and Self-Government Improvement Act of 1997 (Public
Law 105-33), the annual federal payment in heu of taxes
was repealed and replaced with a Federal contribution to
cover special purpose and other unusual costs impesed on
the District by the Federal government.  Federal
contributions to the District for the year ended September
30, 2002 totaled $652,066.

B. EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS

The District, as the nation’s capital, serves as the
command post and the source of first response to any
national threat or terrorist act against the nation. The
District reccived a total federal payment of $155,900 for
various purposcs relating to emergency preparedness.
These funds are made available to assist the District to
prepare itself and s ciizens to more elfectively respond
to any threat or possible terrorist attack. These funds
must be utilized for the specific purposes and expended
by September 30, 2003,

C. GRANTS

The District participates in a2 number of federal award
programs, which are funded through formula and project
grants, direct payments for specified and unrestricted use,
food stamps and other pass-through grants and direct and
guaranleed loans.

The federal government alse provides capital grants,
which are used for the purchase or censtruction of fixed
assets. Capital grants, cxcept for those associated with
water and sewer facilities, are recorded a3
intergovernmental revenue in the General Capital
Improvements Fund. Federal grants and contributions are
shown by function on the government-wide financial
statements.

D. WATER AND SEWER SERVICES

The District exerciscs no oversight responsibility over the
Washington Aqueduct, which is owned by the Federal
government and opcrated by the U. S. Army Corps of
Engincers. Historically, the District issued long-term debt
1o finance most of the Aqueduct’s capital facilities and the
Water and Scwer Anthority recorded this debt and related
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capital costs in its financial statcments.  In 1997, the
Water and Scwer Authority and the other Northern
Virginia customers cntered into an agreement with the
federal government, which provides for the funding of the
Washington Aqueduct’s capital improvement program
directly through borrowings, The Water and Sewer
Autherity is now respensible for funding only its portion
of this debt, other related capital projects, and operating
costs calculated as its pro rata share of water purchased.
The Water and Sewer Authority records payments for
capital costs related to the Washington Agqueduct as
purchascd capacity. Such costs, which are allocable to

other jurisdictions, but funded by the Water and Sewer
Authority prior to April 1, 1999 are reported as due from
other jurisdictions.

Capital outlays arc capitalized and deprecialed over 60
years by the Water and Scwer Authority.  Total capital
outlays including capitalized mnterest from the U. 5.
Treasury draw-downs and pay-as-you-go financmg were
$9,044 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002.

NOTE 12. LEASES

A. CAPITAL LEASES

The District leases buildings and equipment under varicus
agreements that are accounted for as capital leases that
have varying terms. Capital lease commitments are
recorded in the government-wide financial statements.

Capital  lease payments are classified as current
expenditures  in the governmental funds. Such
expenditures totaled $13,558 in 2002.

Master Lease

The District began its Master Equipment Lease Purchase
Program. (the “Program”) in 1998 to provide tax exempt
financing for projects with short-term te intermediate-
term useful hves. The Program cnables the District to
improve its asset/hability management by matching the
uscful life of the asset being financed to the amortization
of the labiality (5 to 10 years).

Lease payment obligations arc not debt nor are they
general obligations of the District, but are payable from
local appropriations. Each schedule under the Program
sets forth the principal and interest components ol each
rental payment payable during the lease term.

As of September 30, 2002, the District had financed
approximately $74.6 mullion of its capital equipment
needs through the Program, and had approximately $55.5
million in principal outstanding. During the year, the
average interest raie used to finance equipment through
the Program was 4.21%, with payments being made on a
quarterly basis.

Equipment procured under this program include such
items as fire apparatus {trucks) and other emergency
medical services equipment {(ambulances); trucks and
cranes used by the Department of Public Works; vehicles

used by the Metropolitan Police Department; and other
hcavy equipment items.

B. OPERATING LEASES

Operating leases are not recorded in the statement of net
assets. These leases contain various renewal optiens, the
effects of which are reflected in the minimum lease
payvments only if it is considered that the option will be
exercised. Certain other opcrating leases contain
escalation clauses and contingent rentals that are not
included in the calculation of the future mininum lease
payments. Operating lease expenditures recerded in
governmental funds were $101,887 in 2002.

C. SCHEDULES OF FUTURE MINIMUM LEASE
COMMITMENTS

The present value of future minimum lease payments
under capital leases and minimum lcase payments for all
operating leases having non-cancelable terms in excess of
one year at September 30, 2002 1s shown in Table 28.
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Table 28 - Schedule of Future Minimum Eease Payments

Primary Government

Component Units

Operating Leases Operating Leases

Capital Equip- Equip-

Year Ending September 30 Leases Facilities ment Facilities ment
2003 b 22,001 81,115 2,676 1,225 414
2004 27802 8,955 580 1,240 77
2005 28,662 80,911 507 1,240 71
20006 20,530 83,450 195 1,241 31
2007 11,817 86,286 - 1,241 -
2008-2012 54,034 149,778 - 414 -
2013-2017 20,738 3,081
Minimum lease payments 185,584 565,576 3,904 6,601 503
Less - imputed interest 28,527
Present value of payments  § 157,057

[

NOTE 13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

A. RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to
torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; Injurics to cmployees; and natural
disasters. The District pays all claim settlements and
judgments out of its General Fund resources and reports
all of its risk management activities as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements.
Claims expenditures and liabilities are reported in the
government-wide financial statcments when it is probable
that loss has occurred and the amount of that loss can be
reasonably estimated and in the General Fund when due
and payable. These losses include an estimate of claims
that have been incurred but not reported.

B. GRANTS AND CONTRACTS

The District has received federal grants for specific
purpeses that are subject to review and audit by the
grantor agencies. Claims against these resources are
generally conditional upon compliance with the terms and
conditions of grant agreements and applicable federal
regutations, ncluding the expenditure of resources for
allowable purposes. Any disallowance resulting from an
audit may become a liability of the District. The audits of
these federally assisted programs have not been
cenducted for the year ended September 30, 2002, As
such, the District’s compliance with applicable grant and

federal requirements will be assessed and established at
some future date.  An accrual of $56,940 in the
government-wide financial statements has been provided
which estimates the probable cumulative expenditures
that may be disallowed by the granting agencies based on
prior experience.

C. LITIGATION

The District is named as a party in legal proceedings and
investigations that occur in the normal course of
governmental operations. Although the ultimate outcome
of these legal proceedings and investigations 1s untknown,
the District is vigorously defending its position tn each
case. All amounts in connection with lawsuits in which a
loss is probable have been included in the provision for
claims and judgments at September 30, 2002.

A summary of the changes in the accrued liability for
claims and judgments in the government-wide financial
statements is shown in Table 29.

District of Columbia  * * % 83



Nofes to the Basic Financial Statemoents

(Dollars in Thousands)

NOTE 13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES —I

Table 29 - Summary of Changes in Claims and Judgments Accrual

Description

Liability at October 1
Incurred claims
Less:

clains payments/adjustments

Liabilitv at September 30

2002 20
3 86,890 95,271
7,959 26,951
(65,880) 35,332
$ 28,969 86,890

The accrued liability is based on estimates of the payments that will be made upon judgment or reselution of the claim. No
accrual has been provided for possible but not probable additional claims, which are estimated to be approximately $110,243.

D. DISABILITY COMPENSATION

The District, through its risk management department,
administers a disability compensation program under Title
XXIII of the District of Columbia Comprehensive Merit
Personnel Act eof 1978 (CMPA)}. This program, which
covers all District employees hired under the authority of
CMPA, provides compensation for lost wages, medical
expenses, and other limited rehabilitation expenses to
eligible employces andfor their dependents, where a
work-related injury or illness resulis in disability or death.
The benefits are funded on a pay-as-you-go basis. The
present value at 6.3% of projected disability
compensation. is accrued in the government-wide financial
statements.

A summary of changes in this accrual is shown in Table
30.

Table 30 - Summtary of Changes in Disability
Compensation Acerual

Description 2002 2001

Liability at October 1 $200,531 $177,660
Claims incurred 64,179 55,200
Less-benefil payments 32.827 32,329
Liability at September 30 $231,883 $200,531

E. INTEREST RATE SWAP AGREEMENTS

The District has entered into interest rate  swap
agreements for two variable rate bond issues (1991B and
2001C/DY, of which 337,270 and $283,870 are
outstanding at September 30, 2002, respectively. The

agreements are for the term of the related outstanding

bonds. Based on the rate swap agreements, the District
owes interest to the counterpartics to the swap, calculated
at a fixed rate of 5.80% and variable rate of 4.004%,
respectively. In return, the counterparties owe the District
intcrest based on a variable rate index. Only the net
difference in intcrest payments is actually exchanged
between the counterparties. The District continues to pay
interest to the bondholders at the vanable rate as provided
by the bonds, and the net interest payment under the swap
agreements adjusts the net interest rate paid by the
District on these bonds to an approximate fixed rate (the
fixed rates stated above). The District will be exposed to
variable rates on the bonds if the counterparty defaults or
it a swap agreement is terminated. ‘Terminating a swap
agreement may result in the District making or receiving a
termination payment related to market rates at that time.

F. DEBT SERVICE DEPOSIT AGREEMENTS

The District entered into debt service deposit agreements
effective through 2414 that exchanged future cash flows
of cerfain special tax fund escrow accounts for a fixed
amount received by the District upon entering into the
agreements, thus increasing the predictabifity of cash
flows from the earnings on escrow account investments.
Upon early termination of an agreement and depending
upon the then current interest rates, a termination amount
may be owed by the District. At September 30, 2002,
deferred revenue of $8,927 related to this agreement is
recorded in the government-wide financial statements.
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A. [ISSUJANCE OF BONDS, NOTES AND OTHER
OBLIGATIONS

On October 15, 2002, the District issucd Series 2002A
and 20028 General Obligation Bonds in the aggregate
principal amount of 3374,200. The proceeds of these
bonds are being used to fund a portion of the District’s
fiscal year 2002 Capital Improvement Program and to pay
the costs and expenses of issuing and delivering the
bonds. On October 31, 2002, the District issued Series
2002C and 2002D General Obligation Refunding Bonds
i the aggregate principal amount of $163,170. The
procecds of these bonds were used to defease a portion of
the District’s outstanding general obligation bonds at a
savings to the District and to pay the costs and cxpenses
of issuing and delivering the bonds. The Series 2002
bonds, together with other outstanding general obligation
bonds and bonds to be issued in the future, are general
obligations of the District, secured by the District’s full
faith and credit and further secured by the Special Real
Property Tax, and arc issued under Section 461 of the
Home Rule Act. The Series 2002A, 20028 and 2002D
bonds bear interest at variable rates from the date of issue
until maturity, unless converted to a fixed rate. However,
the Serics 2002B and 2002D bonds were issued in
conjunction with interest rate swap agrecments, which
effectively fixed the interest rates paid by the District on
these bonds. The Series 2002C bonds were issued as
fixed-rate bonds. The final maturity of the Series 2002A,
20028, 2002C and 20021) bonds is June 1, 2019, 2027,
2014, and 2031, respectively.

On Qctober 30, 2002, the District 1ssued Fiscal Year 2003
General Obligation Tax Revenue Anticipation Notes in
the aggregate principal amount of $150,000. The
procceds of these notes are being used to fund the
District’s Fiscal Year 2003 seasonal cash flow needs. The
notes are general obligations of the District, secured by
the Dustrict’s full faith and credit, and payable from
available revenues, including tax revenues, of the District.
The notes were issued as fixed-rate notes, and mature on
September 30, 2003.

On November 7, 2002, the District facilitated the issuance
of Certificates of Participation by a Trustee in the
aggregate principal amount of $58,075, obligating the
District to make lease payments on certain real property
pursuant to a lease purchase agreement. The proceeds of
thesc certificates were used to defease ocutstanding
certificates at a savings to the District and to pay the costs
and cxpenses of issuing and delivering the certificates.
The certificates are not general obligations of the District,
and are rot secured by the District’s full faith and credit.
Payment of the District’s obligations under the certificates
is subject to annual appropriation. The certificates were

issued as fixed-rate cerlificates, and their {inal maturity 1s
2013,

B. HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY

On October 1, 2002, the Agency 1ssued Series 2002
Multi-Family Housing Revenue bonds of $34.08 million,
on QOctober 24, 2002 the Agency issued Series 2002
Muli-Family Housing Revenue bonds of $4.14 million,
and on December 30, 2002, the Agency issned Serics
2002J for Multifamily Housing bonds of $16.125 million.
In addition, the Agency drew down bond Series 2002 for
$300 million and redeemed the single-family draw down
bonds series 1999 in the amount of $220.1 mllion on
December 13, 2002,

On October 1,2002, the Agency made a McKinney Act
loan to the Carver 2000 Tenants Association, Inc. in the
amount of $2,391 for costs associated with the acquisition
of the George Washington Carver Apartments.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
{Unaudited)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

Three-year historical trend information of the retirement systems administered by the reporting entity is
presented in the following tables as required supplementary information.

Police and Fire Pension Plan

Annuaj Pension Cost Percentage of APC
Year (APC) (millions) Contributed Net Pension
Ended Obligation
09/30/00 $39.9 100% $0
09/30/01 49.0 100% 0
09/30/02 74.6 100% 0
Teachers Pension Plan
Annual Penston Cost Percentage of APC
Year (APC) (millions) Contributed Net Pension
Ended Obligation
09/30/00  $10.7 100% 50
09/30/01 2 100% 0
09/30/02 0 100% 0
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General Fund Financial Section

GENERAL FUND

The General Fund 1s used to account for all financial resources that are not required to be accounted
for in another fund.
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Financial Section

General Funed

Exhihit A-1

GENFERAL FUND

BALANCE SHEET
September 30, 2002
(5000s)

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (unrestricled)
Investmenis
Receivables fnet of allowances for uncollectibles):
Taxes
Accounts
[mergovernmenial
[Yue from component unit
[nterfund
{nventorics
Other current assets
Cash and cash cquivalents {restricted)

Total assets
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Current Liabilities:
Payables:
Accounts
Compensation:
Salarics and wages
Employee benelits
Payroll taxes
Qther deductions
Due to component units
[nteriund =
Accrued habilities:
Claims and judgments
Medicaid
Tax refunds
Deferred revenue:
Property taxes
Other deferrals
Other current liabilitics

Tutal [Fahilicies
Fund Balance:

Reserved
Unreserved

Total fund balance

Total liabilities and fund balance

See Accompanying Indepeadent Auditors’ Report,

3

$

47,936
439996

234,244
116744
4248
4927
282.500
Y.891
23612
447,431

1,616,535

308,845

121,716
3,400
4.917
2,348

25,107
1,443

5,000
59,010
69,663

86,443
24,092
25,633

751,207

545414
319914

865,328

1,616,535
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General Fund

Financial Section

GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENIUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
Year Ended September 30, 2002

(3000s)

Exhibit A-2

Revenues:
Taxes
Licenses and perntits
Fings and forfeits
Charges lor services:
Public
Itergovernmental
Inierfund
Miscellanzous:
Public
Investiment (ncorme
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Governmental direction and support
Economic developmient and regulation
Public safcty and justice
Public education system
Hurmar support services
Public works
Receiverships
Public transportation
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Fiscal charges
Total expenditures

EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER REVENUES

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds [rom:
General obligation bonds
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent:
Refunded debt
Cther charges
Transfers:
Interfund transfers in
Interfund transfirs out
Total other financing sources (tses)

EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES

Fund Balance at October 1, as restated
Fund Balance at September 30
See Accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.

5 3,229 809
52.003
88,495

83,333
10,741
7.168

179,505
10,550
3,660,604

339,819
115,695
634,867
929 985
761,121
146.736
319,608
148,493

131,750
135,688
4,744

{1.955)

72,525

(63,565)
(5.922)

78,848

(52.476)
79410

27455

837,873
5 865,328
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Financial Section General Fund

Exhibit A-3
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND NET FINANCING (SQURCES}) USES
FUNCTION AND OBJECT —GAAP BASIES
Year Ended September 30, 2002
(30005}
Personal Condractual Miscel-
Function and Subfunction Services Services Supplies {Jccupancy [ancous Total
Governmental Direction and Support:
Legislative 3 10,8552 1,243 157 H12 1.492 14,336
Exccutive 43,835 44,311 407 6.488 12,201 137,242
Finance 53,973 14,924 G35 8.203 66,505 144,242
Personnel 10,432 15,779 233 1,044 243 27,733
Administrative 22.752 9,160 773 9,245 {762} 41,168
Llections 3.092 1,451 28 390 87 5.048
Total 144,566 86,868 2.235 25,984 79,7600 339 819
Econamic Development
and Regulation:
Community development GR11 10,414 325 1,308 19,183 41,041
Ecenomic regulation 34,164 7972 485 717 1,316 5108
Employment services 0214 5,728 {170) 1,245 7,329 23 546
Total 53,189 24,114 640 9,724 28,028 115,695
Public Safety and Justice:
Police 324,338 34,297 4404 13,368 3510 378,917
Fire 138,235 4,043 2473 3210 4,126 152,036
Corrections 43214 32135 1,978 5,299 15,110 07,736
Pretection 3,488 1,433 30 922 30 5,903
Judiciat 209 37 4 2 3 275
Total 509,484 71965 8.839 19,301 24,7749 634,867
Public Education System:
Schools 497 815 81,875 18,257 31,313 267,977 897,237
Culwre 20,460 3.231 437 2273 6,350 32,751
Total 518,275 83,106 18,694 33,586 274,327 929 988
Human Support Services:
Health and weltare 76,488 150,516 4,257 27,672 416,368 675,301
Human relations 2,491 3.644 67 236 12,046 18,484
Employment benefits 36,863 - - - - 36,863
Recreation 22290} 3,929 1,055 2,661 539 30474
Tolal 138,132 158,089 5,374 30,569 428,953 761,121
Public Works 67719 48,541 4,186 12,935 13,005 146,786
Receiverships:
Child and family services 26,049 3,350 - 5,440 106,332 141,177
Commission on mental health services 107,160 59,041 1,746 94917 567 178,431
Total 133,209 62,397 1,746 15,357 106,899 319,608
Public transportation - - - - 143,493 148,493
Debt Scrvice - - - - 272,182 272,182
Net Financing Searces - - - - (29.410) (29,410}
Total expenditures and net sources 5 1,564,973 537480 41,719 147,956 1,347,022 3,639,150

See Accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.
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Geneval Fund

Fimanciaf Section

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF LOCAL SOURCE REVENUES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL {BUDGETARY BASIS)

Year Ended September 30, 2002

Fxhibit A-4

{50005)
Yariance -
Budget Favarable
Source Qriginal Revised Actual {Unfavorable)
Taxes:
Property:
Real 3 680,964 707,335 726,014 18,679
Personal 33,682 63,262 #5208 1,946
Public spacc rental 11,385 10,795 12,167 1,372
Total 746.031 TEL,302 813,389 21,997
Sales and use:
Generatl 685,697 607,249 612,354 5,105
Alcoholic beverages 4,810 4,582 4,721 139
Cigarctte 17,000 15,483 17.189 1,706
Maotor vehicles 31.000 36,590 34,573 {2,017}
Total 738,507 663,904 668,837 4,933
Income and franchise:
Individual mcome 1,112,524 L0781 949,175 (158,000}
Corporation franchise 181,160 143,305 142,647 (6358}
Unincorporated business 67,453 59315 68,602 9,287
Total 1,361,077 1,309,801 1,160,424 {149,377}
{ross receipta:
Public utility 152,480 136,670 140,931 (15,739
Toll telecommunication 39,000 57,067 55,353 {(1,714)
Insurance companics 33,000 33,000 35,502 1,002
Total 244,480 247,337 231786 (15,551)
Other:
Deed recordation 69,481 77,033 89,031 12,916
Deed transfer 53,592 60,183 62,228 2,045
[nheritance and estaie 29.887 47,567 125,889 78,322
Economic interest 500 4,500 5,078 378
Total 153,460 189,285 283,146 Y3861
Total taxes 3,243,553 3,191,719 3,147.582 (44,137}
Licenses and Permits:
Business licenses 25,200 30,738 29875 {883)
Nonbusiness permils 18,136 17,149 20,320 3,171
Total 43,336 47,907 50,195 2,288
Fines and Forfeits 60,040 78,835 86,539 7.704
Charges for Services:
Right of way - - 18.000 18,000
(Hher 49,928 37,919 37,472 (447)
Total 49928 317,919 55,472 17,553
Miscellaneous:
Interest 25,820 17,765 9,645 (8.120)
Oher 46,210 46,585 70,908 24,323
Tolal 72,030 6,350 §0,553 16,203
Total local seurce revenues b 3,468,889 3,420,730 3,420,341 (387

See Accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.
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General Fund

Financial Section

CGENERAL FUND

LExhibit A-6

SCHEDULE QF BUDGETARY BASIS REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

Year Ended September 30, 2002

{30005}
Original Revised Variance Actial To
Budget Budget Actaal Original Budget
Revenues and Sources:
Taxes:
Propeny kY 746,031 781,392 803,389 57358
Sales and use 738,507 663.904 (08,837 (69,670
Income and franchise 1,361,077 1,309,501 LIGh424 {200,653)
Other faxes 397940 436,622 514932 116,992
Tolal taxcs 3,243,555 3,191,719 3,147.582 {95.973)
Licenses and pemmils 43,336 47907 50,195 6,839
Fines and forteits 60,040 78,835 86,539 26,499
Charges for services 49,928 37919 55472 5,544
Miscellancoos 72,030 64,350 80,553 8,523
Other 209,545 160,290 136,236 (53,309
Fund balance released rom restriction 37,401 37401 3740 -
Interlund transfer 70,000 70,000 63,000 {7,000}
Totat Revenues and Sources 3,785,835 3,688,421 36760978 {108,857}
Expenditores and Uses:
Governmental direction and support 278407 262,123 265,939 12,468
licomomiic development and regulation 141,520 138,765 116,791 24,735
Public satety and justice 632,241 645,926 G386, 160 {3,919}
Public cihucation system 903,461 910,120 901,609 4,452
Public School Y03 Fxpenditure 107,497 31,939 31,939 75,558
Human support services 732,130 763,145 755,081 (22951
Public works 208,505 309,533 303361 {0,830)
Receiverships 251,200 208,995 331,100 {79,900%
Washington Convention Center payment 42,896 801 - 42,896
Wilson Building 8.859 7,195 5,945 24914
Tobaceo iund 33,254 33,254 - 33,254
Reserve 126,000 - - 120,000
Reserve relief 30,000 - - 390,000
Repay bongts and interest 247,902 239952 233,25} 14,651
Repay deficit bonds and interest 39,300 39,300 38,931 369
Interest on short temm borrowing 500 - - 500
Certiticales of participation - 7,950 7,924 {7.924)
Non-departmental agency 5,799 4,796 - 5,799
‘Total Fxperditures and Uses 3875477 3693797 3629431 246,046
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
and Sources Over (Under)
Expenditures and Uses % (89,642) (5.376) 47,547 137,189

See Adccompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.
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Financial Section General Fund
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Nowmajor Governmental Funds Financial Section

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds

The Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Program Fund is used to account for activities relating to
various TIF development initiatives.

The Tobacco Settlement Financing Corporation (TSFC) Fund is used to account for the tobacco
litigation settlement activities of the District of Columbia.

Capital Projects Fund

The Highway Trust Fund is used to account for the motor vehicle fuel taxes and other fees collected
and used by the District for highway projects.
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Financial Seclion Nenmajor Governmental Funds

Exhibit B-1

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

September 30, 2002
($000s)
Tobacco
Fax Increment Settlement
Financing Financing
Program Corporation Highway Trust Total
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ - $ 204 % - 3 204
Investments 31,657 - 49,703 81,360
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles):
Accounts - - 3,203 3,203
Due from other District entities - - 11,718 L7718
Interfind - - 11,443 11.443
Accrued interest - 2G - 29
Restricted cash and investments - 606,858 - 66,858
Totat assets b 31,657 § 67,091 % 76,067 174,815
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Current Liabilities:
Payables:
Accounts - - 02 92
Accrued habilities - 110 - 110
Dug to other funds - 9,750 9,990 19,740
Total Habilitics - 9,860 10,082 19,942
Fund Balance:
Reserved for encunbrances - - 63,985 65,985
Reserved - 57,137 - 57137
{nreserved 31,657 04 - 31751
Total fund balance 31.657 57,231 65,985 154.873
Total lizhbilities and fund balance $ 31,657 § 67091 $ 76,067 $ 174,815

See Accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Financial Section

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Exhibit B-2

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

Year Ended September 30, 2002

{5000s)
Tobacco
Tax Increment Settlement
Financing Financing Highway
Program Corporation Trust Total
Revenues:
Interest 3 234 % 3,462 § 1,833 5,529
Other 33 34,672 19,946 54,651
Taotal revenoes 267 38.134 21,779 60,180
Expenditures:
Current:
Governmentai direction and support - 358 - 338
Bond principal payment - 6,825 - 6,825
Capital outlay 79,093 - 48,586 127,679
Financing charge 9.078 - - 9,078
Interest 34 39,412 - 39,4596
Total expenditures 88,255 46,595 48,586 183,436
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES
UNDER EXPENDITURES {87.988) (8,461) (26,807} {123,256)
Qther Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfer in - - 38,348 38,348
Proceeds from:
Tax increment financing bonds 119,645 - - 119,645
Total other financing sources 119,645 - 38,348 157,993
EXCESS OF REVENUES
AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES 31,657 (8,401} 11,541 34,737
Fund Balances at October 1 - 65,692 54,444 120,136
Fund Balances at September 30 % 31,657 % 57,231 % 65,985 154,873

See Accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.
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Fiduciary Funds Financial Section

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

The Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the District in a trustee or ageney capacity
and include the pension trust funds and agency funds. Pension trust funds account for asscts held by
the District under terms of a formal trust agreement  Agency funds are used to account for assets held
by the District as an agent for individuals, private organizations or other governments.

The Pension Trust Funds arc used to account for the accumulation of resources to be used for
retirement annuity payments at appropriatc amounts and times in the future for police officers, fire
fighters and public school teachers of the District. Resources are contributed by employees and by the
District and federal governments at amounts determined by an annual actuarial study. The funds are
administered by a thirteen member Retirement Board. Three of these members arc appointed by the
Mayor and thrce by the Council. The other members include one each active and retired police
officers, firc fighters, and teachers. The administrative costs of the board are accounted for in the
funds.

The Agency Funds are used to account for refundable deposits required of various licensces, monies
held in escrow as an agent for individuals, private organizations or other governments.
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Financial Section Fiduciary Funds

Exhibit C-1
PENSION TRUST FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
September 30, 2002
($000s)
Police and Fire Teachers Tatal
ASKRETS
Current Assetss
Cash and cash cquivalents - restricted 5 3250956 % - 5 325,956
Investments - restricted 340,602 TO0,725 1,631,327
Receivables (net of allowances for uncallectibles):
Inkerfund 1,160 1475 2,635
Due from other funds G 72 78
Total assets 1,167,724 793,272 1,939,996
LEIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Current Lialrlities:
Fayables:
Accounts 3618 4,290 7908
Securities lending 80.162 54 372 134,534
Interfund payables 364 247 o1l
Total lizbilities 84,144 58,909 143,053
Net Assets
Festricted for pension benefils 1,083,580 733.303 1,316,943
Total net asscts % 1,083.38G % 733363 3 1,816,943

See Accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.
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Fiduciary Funds

Fraancial Section

Exhibit C-2

PENSION TRUST FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

Year Ended September 30, 2002

{S000s)
Police
and Fire Teachirs Totals
Additions:
Lienetit coninbutions:
Ernployer 5 TG00 - 74,600
Lmployees 19,39} 25,374 44,704
frestment income:
Interest and dividends 35226 24242 39,463
Net deprectation o Gair value of investments (129,668 {86,692y (216,361)
|ess - INvEstiment expenses {5,121} (3,520) (8.647)
Tatal additions {3,574} {40,6002) (46,1703
1Meductions:
Adrunistrative expenses 1,445 0RO 2,434
Benefit payments 3222 3,800 7,022
Total deductions 4667 4 TR0 0456
Change in net assets {19,241) (45,391) (55,631
Net assets held in trust for pension beaefits:
Oceober 1 1,093,821 78,754 1,872,575
Septenber 30 $ 1,183,580 733,363 1.816,943

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report.
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Supporting Schedules Financial Section

SUPPORTING SCHEDULES

Supporting schedules are financial presentations used to aggregate and present in greater detail
information spread throughout the financial statements and to present additional information not
disclosed in the basic financial statements.
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Financial Section Supporting Schedules

Exhibit D-§
FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY
SCHEDULE OF BUDGETARY BASIS EXPENDITURES
Year Ended September 30,2002

(5000s)
Budget
Originai Revised Actual Yariance
Governmental direction and support:
ity Council s 13352 13,598 12,605 Gu3
DO Auditar 1,299 1,535 1,283 31
Advisory neichbothood commissions BOE 310 521 249
Mayor 13.0238 90687 %.,318 70
Execulive secietary 2.516 X406 z.299 147
Citywide call center 1,89% F.854 1.850 P
iy administrator 23009 l6,056 13,052 3,004
Personnel 16,020 5,533 14,982 533
Human resource development 3,766 3.6383 3450 197
Finance and resource management 2430 2,429 2,174 1585
Contracts and procurcment 13,066 13062 12,999 163
Chieftechnolopy officer 12,902 16,263 16.243 3
Propuorly management 34,791 16,021 14877 1.142
Contract appeals TG 603 b7 6 19
Elections amd ethics 3,503 3.94% 3763 183
Campaigo fnange 1.35% 1.3%1 1.290 11
Public employee relations GE6 676 623 33
Employce appeals 1,540 1.506 1,483 21
Ceuncil ol governments 167 367 367 -
Corporation counsci 30,440 48,788 i3.087 (3.299)
Settlements and fudgmecenis I3.450 30050 31.360 (.21
Inspecier gencral 12.476 11.923% I.a1e ing
Chief fimanciat olficer TR.810 81,355 81,245 110
Total gevernmental direction and support 37257 293,083 291,224 1.837
Ecnvomic development and repulation:
Business services and cconomiv develupmunt 33,036 33,137 27,743 7,394
Cifice of zoning 378 1,918 1,892 16
Housing and community development 57,890 TLTI8 67 938 3780
Alcoholic beverage regulation administration 607 2607 1.976 6351
Emplayment services 81,402 T8 .R26 71409 7417
Appeals and review a2 249 243 &
Real propeny assessment and appeais 29% 304 274 30
Coasumer and repulatery affairs 25,605 20215 37,338 1.877
Oifice of banks and financial instijutions H4620 3.904 43178 [.326
Public services commission 6.402 6,306 6,289 217
Cffice of people’s counsel j.AR4 3, B34 3826 13
Ingurance regulation 4311 9.511 8,346 blas
Cffice af cable TV 3437 3,573 3,197 378
Totzl econnmic development and regulation 238,312 249,354 124 840 24,505
Public safety and justice:
Police 34679 341,540 31%.324 35016
Fire and emergency medical scrvices 119870 135,354 134,530 33
Folice and firelightee retircment contribution T4 600 Ta4.600 T 600 -
Corrections inloomation council - 100 - 100
Currections 115,385 130,839 124,686 46,173
National puard 2,055 2,522 1.894 628
Emergency preparedness 3964 20,2749 19887 39z
Judiciad disabilities and wenure 172 145 182 3
Judicial nemination 91 93 93 -
Citizen complaint review hoard 1,424 §.521 1.168 153
Advisery commisgion an sentencing 637 440 416 T4
Clfice of the Chicf Modical Examiner 6,512 5,965 3.740 225
Tortzl public safely and justice 640,579 TL3,611 J01,521 12.090
Puhblic education system:
Fublic schools B20.038 $81.593 861,220 20,373
FY03 public sehool expenditnre 743 1.527 1.327 -
State education office 47370 30,048 47 686 2362
Fuhlic charter schoals 142,257 73372 67213 6,139
F¥ 02 public charter schouol expenditure i z6 LEANEN B 30,412 -
University 45912 56,068 6068 -
Fullic tibrary 27.270 21414 6652 Te2
Atts and humanitics 2436 2,637 2604 2%
Totzl public edocation system 1,192,800 1,123,066 1,093,352 29.634
fCantimped}
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Supporting Schedules Financial Section

Exhikit I3-1
FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY
SCHEDULE OF BUDGETARY BASIES EXPENDITURES

Year KEnded September 30, 2002

(3000s)
Rudaet
ODviginal Revised Actual Variance
Human suppurt services:
Fleman development b 421,581 434277 431,279 rO9s
Health 1,291.040 1,223,188 1,285,438 7710
Recreation and parks 245 32449 ALa72 677
Aging L2653 21490 19.554 1.936
PBC transition - 17,7248 17,212 Ay
Linemployment compensation contribution 7,200 Y182 9.182
Employes disabilily compensation 2749846 27701 27,700 -
Fluman rights 1.651 1871 833 33
Children investment trust - 5,831 5831 -
Lating affairs 2,549 2.861 2508 52
Encrey 284 11954 [stnl 1.473
Asian and pacific islander aflfairs 207 20 195 12
Veterans' affairs 234 175 172 3
Total human suppurt services 1,810,831 1,788.3347 1.773.216 15,333
Public works:
Public works 114,072 123991 122 87¢% 1112
Department of mater vehicles 34,025 33,329 32,372 757
Faxicab commission 2,992 2,032 957 1,995
Washinglon metropelitan area transit commission B3 43 i3 -
Washinpglon metropolitan arca transit authority 148,622 143,622 148,401 129
School transit subsidy 3,100 3,104 2.394 206
Totzl public works 302,900 312,077 M7, 878 4,194
Receiverships:
Child and family services 176,378 172,447 204,016 {31,369)
Incentives for adoption of children - 404 a4 -
Dept af mental health 228,620 129,981 221.150 #4831
Tatal receiverships 444,908 403,332 426 071 (22,738)
Other:
Reserve 120,000 - . -
Repayment of bonds and inlerest 247,302 239,952 233.251 6. 701
Repayment of peneral fund deficil bonds 39300 39,300 38931 369
Interest an short term borrowing 500 - - .
Certifteates ol pariicipation - 7,930 T84 26
Emergency planning and sccurity cosls 16,058 606 . GG
Wilson Building 5850 7,195 3043 1.250
Reserve Relicf 30000 - - -
Emergency reserve fund iransfer 33254 33.234 - 33,254
Non-departmuental agency 5,799 4,799 - 4,744
Waler and sewer authority - 244 978 03027 41,951
Washingron agueduct - 46,510 - 46,510
Lottery and pames - 129.68%8 212,158 17.550
Storm waler 3.aon 3.000 BT 2,112
Sports commission - 9.427 3.741 5.940
Retirement board administration . 13,338 T68 6,220
Correctional mndustrics - - (8143 614
Washington convention center operations - 57,278 - 57.27%
Workloree investment 42,896 #il - 301
Total other 547,668 938,426 712,499 225,027
Total budget 5 3,455,345 5,821,496 5.530.641 290,855

See dccompanying fndependent Auditors” Repors.
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Financial Section

Supporting Schedules

Exhibit D-2

FINANCEAL REPORTING ENTITY

SCHEDULE OF BUDGETARY BASIS OPERATIONS BY SOURCE OF FUNDS

Year Ended Seplerrber 30, 2002
(3000s)

I ocal Sowrce

Federal Grants

Original
Beadct

Revised
Budext

Actual

Varimxe

COriginal
Budgst

Ruvisand
Budort

Actual Variance

Ceneral Funck
Revenwes
Faporebitizes

Foauss {Deficiency)

Water and Sever L tility:
Water and Sower Authority:
Fenonxs
Bicuss {Txficiency)

Winlingion Aqueduct:
Revenxs
Ppenditres

Eveess (Deficiancy)

Total Witer and Sewor Ltility:
Revernies
DExponchinres

Froess (Defcieney)
Lottery and Garmes:

Revenues

Expenililures
| s (Deficteray)

Sports Commission:

Reveries

Equrditures
Ixecess (Deficioney)

Retiverrent Board Administration:
Foverees
Lapendibres
Dxoess (Telioaxy)

Correctional Inchestries:
Revenues
Fpenditures

Boaoess (Leficiancy)

Washington Convention Genter Cperations;

Resariucs
Faqerdinnes
Procss (Defciancy)

Total:
Rimveriues
Exoess (Ceficiency)

S 35290
3605932

KALN )
3.533.507

330742
380474

7389
24033

1,546,563
1,546,503

1,493.574
1,493,574

1,389,557
1434177

104,017
39397

{59,042

(5370)

11,268

(16,64)

(.60 L6

356,290
35532

3528131
3533507

3320742
35047

7330
2,033

1,546,563
1,540,563

1493574
1493,574

14017
39397

138557
149377

$  (@ed)

{3.376)

11,268

(16,644)

{020 04,020

See Acgonpaning fndepericent Auclitors’ Report,
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Supporting Schedules

Financial Section

Exhibit D-2
FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY
SCHEDULE OF BUDGETARY BASIS OPERATIONS BY SCURCE OF FIINDS
Year Ended Septernber 30, 2002
{3000s)
Private and Other Total
Oripina Revised Origina Revised
Budpet Budget Actual Varianee Rudget Budaet Artual Variance
CGeneral Fund:
Revinutes 239730 189,846 204 559 (14.713) 5.302,603 5.211,351 5,114,835 003
Expenditures 239.750 189.846 140,542 40,34 5452245 5.216927 5,104,193 112.734
Excess (Deficicney} . . L7 3,017} (50.642) 15,576) 10,665 (16041)
Water and Sewer Utilin:
Water and Sewer Anthority:
Rewvenues - 244,978 05,0m7 41,951 - 244978 201027 41951
Frpenaditures - 244978 203027 41,951 - 244978 23027 41,951
Excess (Ieficiency) - - - - - - B -
Viashington Aquedect:
Ruveres - 46,510 - 46,3100 - 4,510 - 46,510
Fxpenditures - 46510 - 46510 - 6510 - 46,510
Excess (Deficicncy) - - - N - N N C
Totad Water and Sewer Ltility:
Revenues - 291,488 03.0m7 88,401 - 291,488 203,027 83,461
Experyfitures - 201448 203,027 33,461 - 291 484 05,027 83461
Exeess (Deficiency) - - - - - - - -
Lottery and Cames:
Revernres - 229,688 212138 17,550 - 229688 212,138 17,550
Expenditures - 220 688 212,138 17,55 - 229,688 212,138 17,550
Engess (1 elicicncy’} - - - - - - - -
Sports Cormmassion:
Revenues - 9,627 3,741 5486 - 9,627 3,741 3,880
Expenditures - 9,627 3741 5886 - 2627 3,741 5,880
Execess (Deticiency} - - - N C - s N
Retirement Board Administration:
Reventes - 13,388 7.168 4220 - 13,384 7,168 6,220
Fxpenditures - 13,388 7168 6,220 - 13,388 7168 6,220
Encess (Deficiency} - - - - - - - -
Correctional Industrics:
Revenues - - (614) 614 - - {614) 614
Expenditures - - {6]4) Gld - - {614) [JE]
Exeess (Dediciency} - - - - - - - -
Washington Cunvention Center Operations:
Revenues - 57278 - 57,278 - 57278 - 57,278
Expenditures - 57,278 - 57278 - 57278 - 57278
Excess (Deficiency) - - N - N " -
Total:
Revenues 239730 791315 630018 161,29 5,362,603 5813020 5,540,318 72707
Experchitures 239,750 1315 SH6.002 225,313 5,452.245 5,818.39% 5529653 284743
Fxeess (Deficiency) - - 6407 64017) {80.642) (3.376) 10,665 {16,041}
District of Columbia A & # [07



Financial Section Supporting Schiedudes

Exhibit -3
FINANCIAL REFORTING ENTITY
SCHEDULE OF BUDGET REVISIONS
Year Ended Septemiwer 30. 2002

{5000}
Laeal Saurce Futleral Cirants
Repra- Mher Revised Original Initial Ravenue Revised
Adlocation aramming Allocations Budzel Budpet Alliscztion Cliange Budget
Revenues il Somrces:
Taxcs
Property Laxess 5 T.00 - - 33361 TRIASZ - - - -
Sades and wse tives V38507 - - 174604 GEL Y - - - -
Incenme Less [ R Rirr - - (3127 1305801 . - - -
(bt (s 080 . - R8T 430,61% - - - -
Tewial cess 3243553 - - {31.858) AR 1) - - -
Licetiscs and pormils 13,336 - - 4571 17,507 -
Fines auml o fos B0 - B 18,795 TR - - - -
Lhurges for semvices A5 - - {12,009 31519 -
telizeellneous TR0 - - [TE50) {rd, 350 - - -
Privale & Other - - - - - .
Chpetating grans - . - - - 1546563 - 132,939) L 493574
“Trmater in oo Lottery Buond 0000 - - - 70000 . - .
Tolal revenues and sources A53RRE - - {45,159 3,490,730 1.536.563 - [51,989) 1495574
Expenditures and Lises:
Crowerromenzad dicection and seppeat PR v | 23,574 (4,124} {11295} 238,573 Rhdeig - (1.910) REH
Economic developmm il nepalidion #0736 (3HS) (194) {43 ATLRE 96,199 - 13,203 110,002
Public sufity and juslice 554,303 93,178 {17,701 {1L.T06) 633,57 5208 - FHT 67645
Fublic edecation syslem R0 3427 - {19,746y WH.AP 172,305 . 1L2H 173,796
Public School FY03 Expendituee: 167697 (T3.551) - . E R - - -
Human supgue semvices gy 31,327 (1,744} {478y 0T 1075, 5400 . (32691} 1,023,265
Public works 180254 12,233 1723 - 9T Ko 4,305 - [LE51) pATE]
Foceivemships BOS15 5,678 300 {E.383) 293310 134,339 - {19536} RLE13
Work [Ddce investiments 42,59 {A2.092) (3} - 01 - - - -
Tobacco Semlermrn Triet Furet Traoder 33,2594 - - - 33234
Wilson Building 3859 L) - . 7,195 - - - -
Reserve 120,600 {120,000y - -
Reserve Relief 3000 [l ] - - - - - - -
Repayment of bonds and inderest 247902 {79500 - - 239,952 -
Raprayarert of Cetieral Fuond deficil bends e300 - - 0 - - - -
LrteresL om short Wim bomosing Eley) (500y - - - -
Curtifieanes of partici paticn - 50 - - 7550 - - - -
Mon Depeurtrmental 3.7y {1000y - - 4,799 - . -
Brievgency planning and security cosis . GG . (6 - 16,058 - [13.452) 203
Witer and Sewer Aytherny - - - - - - -
Washinglon Aqueduct . - - - - - -
Lottery and Cartess - - - - - - - - -
Sports Conmrission - - - - - -
Sacman Warer - - - . . - -
Reliremeent Beard udminisirgion - - - - . -
Coerectional Industrics - . - . - - - . -
Woshingtem Comuention Center dperalions - - - - - . - - -
Manapement Superisorny Sendee
1o tessnace developeent - - - - . - - . -
Equipment Lease: - Operatin: - - - - - - - -
Washington Cemvention Center payimeit - - - - - . - - -
Tatal expenadiiures and uses 3,665,931 132,776) [23.98%) {75660 3,553,507 1,546,563 - {52,989 1 4%3.574
Subacead (137,043} 32T 13.95% 27501 2T
Extamy (Deficiency) of Revenues
and Sources Over {Unter}
Expenditures and Llses 5 (127,043) 32076 21080 27,50 H2.7TT) - - . -

See Accompanving Independent Auditors’ Beport.
IRV i T
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Supporting Schedules Financial Section

Exhihit 1»-3
FINANCTAL REPORTING ENTTEY
SCHEDULE OF BUDGET REVISIONS
Year Ended Septernber 30, 26002
{5000s)
Private and Other Tutal
Original Initizl Revenue Kevised Oviginal [ Repro- Revenine Other Rovised
Banlprit Allecition {hange Puoduet Hanjuct Allocarion wramning Clan: Allocations Budoet
Reveriies ail Sources:
Teaxes.
Propoity lakes K} - - - - o030 - - - 33,361 TELNZ
Salrs and use taxes - - - - EE - - - [ T3 3 G0
Incorm v - - . . 1,360,077 - - - (40,270 1,3049.801
Other tiess - - - - 97 0 - - - IRART 456627
‘Tl toees - - - - 3,243,555 - - - [ R LTS
Ficomses il pearmans - - . . A3 336 - - - £371 A7807
Fines and Rty - - . . £1040 - - - 15,795 535
Chargess feor services . - - . 025 - - - (12005 37019
Miseellimeous - - - . T1030 - - - {76500 6,550
Privige & Oher 24235 - 531,365 THALS 2 R0 - - X e - THRAS
Qpuziing frands - - - - 1540562 - . {33585 - 1A%3,5%
Tramater in fioon Lottay Boord - - - - 70,000 - - - - LD
Total revenucs and sources 242850 - 551,565 TALS 5,328,302 - - 408,576 [45.159) 5778717
Expenditures and Lises:
Covernmenial dirsction anl seppeat 44,027 - (26416} 22610 7357 255 (4,124} (34,3203 {11,248) 295083
Brononmc devebopona and ek usm #1327 - wat ¥21% W32 [30H45) {154} 14,730 {H43) 240254
Frublic safay ancl juestice 37478 - (25086} 12392 GALATY 0,178 {17.701) 34261 {41,706} 71361
Public education systern 3504 - 8 15312 108550 2 en| - 1,299 {19,746} L0012y
Public $choul FYU3 Fapersfilun: - - - - 147,497 (75.558) - - - 31939
Humnan suppert servieds 13709 - 1,106 AR LAIEN 31,527 (1,74 [51.3%1) {476} 1,788,547
Public works L2171 - (302} 11,66 U200 12233 (723} (2.353) - ez
Rocoiverships il . - <] 20,206 LI R JE678 500 [4%.401) [1.353) 403,332
Workfoire investrmas - - - - 42590 (42,090 £} - - ¥
Tobaccn Satlorrent Trust Fund Transfir - - - - 32M - - . . )
Wilsom Fuilding - - - - B850 {1.664) - . . 7195
Rostrwe - - - - 120,000 {120,000 - . . -
Fesirve Ruliol - . - - 30000 (30,000 . . . .
Rapymema of Tends and intersest - - - - 247902 {7.950) - - - 200552
Raprymamdt of Ceneral Fund deficie bonds - - - - 39300 - - . - e300
Tnierest t slunt tenm bovrewving. - . - - 500 {5009 -
Certificaoes of pasticipation - - - - - FAE . - - 7950
Wom Depstunenital . . - - 579 {10 . . . 4799
Frremzency planming and security costs - - - 16,058 GG . {15432} {06) 05
Water ared Sewer Authority - - HAHTE 24978 - - - 24,978 - THOT
Wirshington Adqueduct - - 46,510 46,510 - - - 46,510 - 510
Lomery and Garms - - it 229688 - - - 2I06RE - 229688
Sponts ConTmissicn - - 9027 G627 - - - 8627 - 9627
Stonn Water 3,160 - - EREEs] Joo - - - - ERIrY
Retirerrum Beoand ssbrdoigteaaticn - - 13,588 13388 - - - 13,33% - 13,388
Comectionat Innmsiies - - - - - - - - - -
Washington Conmemtion Cemer operalions - - ] A1I8 - - - 5278 . FTT8
Manugernent Supeavisay Savice
Hurrmn resanee devedoperent - - - - - - - - - .
Equipmun Lmge - Operating - - - - - - - - - -
Washington Ceneerition Center paytient - - - - - - - - . .
Total expenditures and uses 242,850 - 551565 THAIS SAS5. 5 {32,776) {23,969y 08,570 (75600} 582149
Subteal - - - - (127,043 3177 23080 - 5N (4277
Excess (Deficivncy) of Revenues
and Sonrees Over (Uikder)
Expendittres and Uses 5 - - - - (127,043} 32,776 23,989 - 3501 {43,777

District of Columbia A % & 109
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Supporting Schedules

Financial Section

Exhibit D5
FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY
SCHEDPULE OF BUDGETARY BASIS EXPENDI'TURES
Year Ended September 30, 2002
(3000s)
2002 2001 Difference
Caross Reluted Resovrees Net %o of Net Y of Better or (Worse)
Cost District Federal Ciost Revenue Cost Revenue Amnunt k2
Cieneral Revenues:
Soverelm
Taxes 5 - 3229500 - 3,229,809 W7 % S 3363 HI0 Y% S (86,570 {2.0) %
Liccnses and permits - 32,003 - 52003 13 42 329 1.1 9,174 214
Fines and torfeis 8,495 - 88,495 25 58,223 1.4 30,272 520
Miscellaneous:
Interest - 12,652 - 12,652 6.3 38,868 1.0 (26.216) (©7.4)
{xher 177,405 - 177,403 S50 214,838 53 (37,433) {174
Federal:
Payment in licu of taxes - - - . - 370,061 9.2 (370061 {1000}
Total general revenues 3.5600,362 - 3,560,362 1000 4.041,198 1(K).1 {480, 836) [EIED)
Cost of Operating:
Ciereral:
Governtrental divection 339819 12935 - 326,884 42 233,792 5.7 {93,002} (30.8)
Feoonomic development 115,695 30,955 - 34,740 24 &4,501 21 (230 0.3
Public safiety and justios 634,867 16,957 - 617,880 184 914,496 226 296,616 324
Public aducation 929,088 794 - 929,194 26,1 966,40 239 37,216 39
Hurnan sipport services 61121 98 - To1023 214 61356 16.6 (H0,66T} (13.5)
Public works 295,279 44,472 - 250,807 T 220,285 55 (30.522) (139
Receiverships 319,608 - - 319,608 a0 64,677 a0 45,069 12.4
Interest and chargzes 140,432 - - 140,432 39 149,177 a7 8.7145 5.9
“Translirs 52476 TRE4R - {26,372) 0N 272842 6.7 296214 1007
Special Revenue:
General direction LU1E,350 2.m0022 - {111,672) (3.1 (38,105} {1.4) 53,507 -
Enterprise:
Lottery and ganxs 211670 201,781 - {1y - (325) - 214y {63.8}
Uneoplovment conrpensation 191,043 172,601 - 18 442 03 (31,943} {0.8) {30.383) {157.7)
Conponent Units:
Waler and Scwcr 171,986 255335 - {83,549) (2.3 (33,720 (1.3} 29,820 55.5
Convention {enter 20,130 62945 - 42.819) (1.2 {40,700 {10} 219 5.2
Sports Commnission 10,232 7,501 - 2,731 0.1 (25) - (2,756) {11024.09
Hotsing Finanee 53679 54,020 - (5,350) (133} (25,778 {0.6) {20.428) {703
Liniversity 79,292 23,802 - [E%110)] {01} 9,560 0.2 14.076 1471
Net cost of operating 0.245,668 3,068,305 - 3,177,363 %5 1,675 431 0.9 498,068 13.6
CURRENT INCOME 6,245,668 6,628,667 - IR0 (4.5} 363,767 9.2 17,232 4.7
Cost of Investing (Financing):
Fixed asscts 835417 177,644 ol 44y 450,324 130 277028 69 2192490 M2
1.ang term debt 201,237 288,535 - {87,208) (2.5} 363,554 139 (630.832) {115.5)
Nel cost of investing 1.036,654 466,179 161,449 409,026 11.4 240,352 208 431,356) (31.3)
FRNANCIAL ¥F1.OWIN 7282322 7004846 161,449 (26,027 [GX3) 474,815y (1L.§) 393,798 04.5
Reclassification to GAAP Basis:
Famloyes benefits - - - . - 20,936 05 {20.936) {100.0)
Depreciation (155,288} - - (155,288) 4.4 (31,152) {0.8) {124.136) (398.5)
Fixexd assets 29%.876 - - 296,470 83 268,205 6.6 28,671 107
Long tenn debt (119,785) - - {119,783) 3.4 6,302 0.2 {126.587) {1861.0
Total reclassification 21803 - - 21,803 [iX3) 264,791 6.5 (242 548) 91.8)
INCREASE (DECREASE)
N BALANCES S w519 7,094,846 161,449 {4,224) 0% § 21004 (115% § 205,800 98B0 "%

See Accomparying Ihdependent Audiiors’ Report.
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